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1306 Question without Notice.

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.
Thursday, 6 November, 1884.

Question without Notice~Crown Lands Bill—adoption
of report.—Crown Lunds Bill--recomnmittal.—Supply.
—Adjournment,

The SPEAKER took the chair at half-past
3 o’clock.

QUESTION WITHOUT NOTICE.

Mr. NORTON said: I wish to ask the hon.
Colonial Treasurer—without notice, and if he has
no objection—if he has found any more reports or
papers in connection with the apparent light at
the entrance to Port Curtis. I am sure there
should be some.

The COLONIAL TREASURER (Hon. J. R.
Dickson) said: I have been unable to find any
further correspondence on the subject of the
Port Curtis Light, beyond what has been laid
on the table of the House; but Captain Heath
has made a report since which is chiefly con-
firmatory of the views expressed in the former
report, and referring to the heavy ezpense of
procuring a more powerful light. Beyond that,
I cannot find traces of any further corvespon-
dence in the office,

[ASSEMBLY.]

Crouwn Lands Bill,

CROWN LAXDS BILL—ADOPTION OF
REPORT.
Ou the motion of the MINISTER TFOR
LANDS (Hon. C. B. Dutton), this Order of
the Day was discharged from the paper.

CROWN LANDS BILL—RECOMMITTAT.

On the motion of the MINISTER TFOR
LANDS, the Speaker left the chair, and the
House resolved itself into a Committee of the
Whole for the purpose of reconsidering clauses
3 and 4, a new clause to follow clause 15, sub-
section 3 of clause 16, new paragraph to follow
paragraph 2 of clause 36, new clause to follow
clause 40, add to paragraph 3 of clause 53, amend
subsection 4 of clause 54, and clauses 57, 111, and
119.

On clause 3, as follows :—

“This Act, execept when otherwise expressly provided,
eomnience kes effect on and after the first day
of Jamuwary, one thousand eight hundred and eighty-five,
which date is hereinafrer referred toas the cominence-
ment of this A

The MINISTER FOR LANDS moved that
the word “January” in the 2nd line be owitted,
with a view of inserting the word ¢ March.”
By that amendment a sufficient extension of
time would be given to enable preparations to he
made for bringing the Act into force.

The Hox. Sk T. Mc1LWRAITH asked what
clauses the proposed amendment would particu-
larly atfect ?

The PREMIER (Hon. S. W. Gritlith) said it
would affect the commencement of the whole
Bill, with the exception of two clauses, which
would come into operation immediately on the
passing of the Bill.  Those were clauses 6 and 11.
The board might be constituted as soon as
the Bill passed, and the provisions about pre-
emptions would also come into operation then.
With those exceptions, the operation of the whole
of the Bill would be postponed until March.

The Hox. S T. McILWRAITH asked,
with reference to clause 25, relating to existing
pastoral leases being brought under the Bill, if
the time mentioned in that clause was put
forward two months ?

The PREMIER : VYes.
Amendment agreed to; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

On clause 4—** Interpretation”—

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said that in
that clause he proposed to insert after the inter-
pretation of the term ¢ commissioner,” as used
in the Bill, the interpretation of *land agent,”
who had certain duties to perform under the
Bill. The interpretation he proposed to insert
was as follows :

“‘Land Agent’—The land agent appointed under the
provisions of this Act for the district in which the land
in question is situated.”

The Hoxn. Sz T. McILWRAITH said the
amendment was certainly consistent with the
phraseology of the interpretation of the term
“commissioner”; but why use the extraordinary
language—*‘“ the district in which the land in
question is sitnated”? Why not give the defini-
tion of ‘‘commissioner” as ‘‘the land commis-
sioner appointed under the provisions of this Act
for any district,” and of *‘land agent” as “‘the
land agent appointed under the provisions of
this Act for any district ”? He did uot see any
reason at all for the phraseology—*‘ the district
in which the land in question is situated.” There
was no land in question that he could see.

The PREMIER said the duties of the com-
missioner were to be discharged in reference to
a particular piece of land, The “land agent”
mweant the land agent fur the district proclaimed
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under the provisions of the Bill in which the
land to be dealt with was situated, and in respect
to which he had duties to perform.

Amendment agreed to ; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS moved that
the following new clause be inserted after
clause 15 :—

The hoard shall hear and determine all such ques-
tions connected with the administration of this Act as
may be referred to them by the Governor in Council for
determination.

Mr. NORTON asked what was the object of
that clause, and how would it work in the event
of the board disagreeing ?

The PREMIER said that certain duties were
imposed on the board by the provisions already
passed, but there might easily be cases not spect-
fically defined which it might be desirable to
have referred to them for determination ; andthe
new clause gave a general power to the Governor
in Council to refer such cases to the board. A
subsequent clause provided that if the hoard
were unable to agree upon any question it should
be referred to the Minister for decision ; and that
provision applied to everything, whether it was
a question of appeal, or inquiry, or the confirma-
tion of a decision, or any other matter referred
to the board.

Question put and passed.

On clause 16, as follows :—

“Tor the purposes of any inguiry or appeal held by or
made to the board, they shall have power to summon
any person as a witness and examine him upon oath,
and for such purpose shall have such and the same
powers as the Supreme Court or a judge thereof.

“Any party to any such inguiry or appeal may he
represented by his counsel, attorney, or agent.

“Yvery such inquiry and appeal shall be heard
and determined. and the decision thereon shall be pro-
nounced in open court.

“The board may make such order as they think fit as
to the costs of any inquiry, appeal, or dispute, heard
and determined by them. Any such order may be
made an order of the Supreme Court and enforced
accordingly.”

The PREMIER moved the insertion of the
words ‘“may, and if required by either party,”
after the word ““appeal” in the 3rd paragraph,
and said he suggested on the previous evening,
when notifying the amendments it was intended
to make in the Bill, that there might be cases in
which the parties would not desire them to be
heard in open court, because if they were heard
in open court somebody must be present to argue
the matter, and it might be very inconvenient
for the parties to attend themselves, and they
might not care to appoint an agent. They might
be content to leave it to the board to read their
written statements and decide on them. It was
therefore proposed to make it optional instead of
imperative to hear a matter in open court. The
amendment would make the clause read in this
way —

“Xﬂvery such ingquiry and appeal may, and if required
by either party shull, be heard and determined, and the
decision thereon shall be pronounced in open court.”
That could not deprive anybody of any right,
for either party might insist upon having the
matter heard in open court.

The Hon. Sir T. McILWRAITH said there
was some discussion on that clause when it was
under the consideration of the Committee before.
In ninety-nine cases out of a hundred the Gov-
ernment would be one party and a selector the
other, and that amendment would place an im-
mense power in the hands of the Government,
because they might say in many cases that they
should be heard and determined in secret instead
of in open court.

The PREMIER : No; the other way,
The Hox. Sz T. McILWRAITH ;: No; any
party may give notice, ’
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The PREMIETR : If he wants it heard in
open court.

The Howx. Sz T. McILWRAITH said the
clanse provided that *“every such inquiry and
appeal may, and if required by either party
shall, be heard and determined” in open court ; so
that if no party required the case to be heard
and determined in open court the board night
hear it in secret.

The PREMIER : Yes.

The Hox. Stz T. McILWRATITH said that
it was a very great power to place in the hands
of the board. Why should not every inquiry
and appeal be heard in open court? He did not
see that it made any difference in the cost.

The PREMITER said he thought he indicated
very clearly the object of the amendment. Sup-
pose it was a case of assessment of rent that the
board had to determine. The commissioner
would send in his valuation and the party would
send in his. As the clause now stood, the party
who objected to the commissioner’s valuation
must attend in the board’s court, either person-
ally or by his agent, for the purpose of disputing
or arguing the matter. Of course he might stop
away if he liked, but in that case decision might
be given against him. But in some instances
the parties might prefer to make their remon-
strance in writing, and let the board determine
the matter on their written statements. For
example, in case of compensation, the parties
might not desire to have the matter heard in
opencourt. Theymightsay, ‘‘Hereisourevidence
in writing ; we send it all down to you, and are
quite prepared to allow you to read these state-
ments and determine the question without hear-
ing the matter in open court.” Such a couize
would save the parties a great deal of expense
and trouble, in many cases in which the parties
were living at a distance up the country. DBut
if either party thought it desirable that the
inquiry should be held in open court, then it
must be held publicly.

The Hon. Sz T. McILWRAITH : How is
it more expensive to have a matter decided in
open court ?

The PREMIER said, because a party would,
as he had already stated, have to attend the
court or the case might go against him. If, for
instance, the board had to hear an appeal, and
nobody appeared, then the appeal would be dis-
missed. Why should the parties not be allowed
to appeal on a matter which could be determined
by declarations without attending the court?
If the parties wished i, why should the matter
not be decided in that way? Why should they
not have that option ?

The Hox. Sz T. McILWRAITH: Why

should not declarations be received in open court?

The PREMIER said there was no reason at
all why they should not; but why should not
parties be allowed to save themselves the expense
of having someone to represent them in open
court ?

The Hox. Stk T. McILWRAITH said the
hon. gentleman and he looked at the question
from very different points of view. The Premier
only took into consideration the interests of two
parties ; but there was another party to be taken
into consideration for whom the clause was
specially framed—he referred to the public.
Nobody should have the right of going to the
board and saying that he preferred his case
to be tried in secret. That should certainly
not be allowed, and everything ought to be
done in public. The fact that the public knew
what was going on constituted the value of the
court ; and so far from the contesting partiey
having a right to claim that the case should be
tried in secret, the public should have the right
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to claim that everything be done in open court.
He did not understand how the decision being
given in open court would be more expensive
than if it was given by the board sitting in their
office.

The PREMIER said, as the clause stood,
every determination of the board upon questions
of compensation and rent would have to be pro-
nounced in open court. They were in fact a
board of arbitrators. The amendment was
moved with the object of saving expense and
trouble to the parties who might come before the
board. He thought that on the whole it would be o
beneficial amendment and a relief in many cases.
That was the only object with which it was pro-
posed. As a general rule he agreed that the
decision should be given in open court, but it
might be a relief to the individuals concerned if
the amendment proposed was agreed to.

The Hox. Sir T. MCILWRAITH said, if the
board could decide that a case could be tried
secretly, the object of the existence of the
court was destroyed. He wanted to see the
board forced to give their decisions in open court.
Of course the commissioners appointed by the
present Government would be perfectly immacu-
late men, but their successors might not be so
pure. The claimant and the commissioner
might, in that case, be found on one side,
and of course they would decide to hear the
case inside the office instead of in open court.
Hon. gentlemen must see that there were
three parties to be considered—the Govern-
ment, the selector, and the public. It was
only right that the public should see where their
money was going to when the decisions were
being pronounced, and he thought the amend-
ment was most objectionable. As to the saving
of expense, he did not understand why there
should be any difference, but they could easily
find a remedy for that if it was found too expen-
sive to decide cases before the public.

The PREMIER said he would point out that
a great many of the cases determined by the
judges of the Supreme Court were not determined
in open court. The greater part of the judge’s
work was done in chambers, so that it was not a
very extraordinary thing to entrust an official
with the power of doing his work in private. If
the amendment was not considered in the
interests of the individual he did not care to
press it

Mr. SCOTT asked if it was intended that, in
addition to the case being tried in secret, the
decision should be given in secret ?

The PREMIER said the clause would have to
be further amended to meet the point raised by
the hon, member, but he would withdraw the
amendment altogether.

Amendment, by leave, withdrawn.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS moved that
the following subsection be inserted after the
2nd paragraph in clause 36 :—

If two or more applications are made at the same

time, the right of priority shall be determined by lot in
the presceribed manner.
That would meet cases in which selections
might have been forfeited, re-surveyed, and
thrown open to selection. The Government
might divide a forfeited selection into several
parts, and there might be three or four applicants
for the same piece of land. In a case of that
kind the applications would be decided by lot.

Amendment agreed to; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

The MINTSTER FOR LANDS proposed the
following new clause, to follow clause 40 :—

With respect to land which, before the passing of
this Act. had been proclaimed open for selection or for
sule by anction under the provisions of the Crown Lands

[ASSEMBLY.]
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Alienation Act, or any Act therehy repealed, and as to
which it is practicable to divide the land into lots with-
out actnal survey, and to iudicate the position of such
lots by means of maps or plans, and by reference te
known or marked boundaries or starting points, the
tollowing provisions shull have effect :—

1. The Governor in Couneil, on the recommendation
ot the board, may suspend the operation of so
much of the last preceding section as requires
the L:ind to be actually surveyed and marked on
the ground before it is proeclaimed open for
seleetion, and may require the Surveyor-General
to divide the land into lots, and to indicate the
position of sneh lots on proper maps or plans ;

2. The land may thereupon be proclaimned open for
selection in the same manner as it it had been
surveyed, and the delineation of the lots on the
maps or plans shall be deewed to be a survey
thereof, and the lots shall he deemed to he
surveyed lots for the purposes of this part of the
Act.

3. The powers conferred hy this section may be
exercised at any time within two years after the
commencement of this Act, hut not afterwards.

The clause would meet any difficulty that might
arise under the clause providing that land should
be surveyed before being open to selection. He
had pointed out at the time that clause was
passed that there would necessarily be a good
deal of delay before the land could be surveyed
and thrown open. Many difficulties might arise,
such as the scarcity of surveyors and the neces-
sary preparations that would have to be made.
Although he was quite convinced of the value of
having survey before selection, he had antici-
pated that much trouble would be caused through
delays of various kinds. The public, not under-
standing the difficulties which might be in the
way of the Survey Department, would natu-
rally become impatient, and the clause now pro-
posed would be an improvement in many respects.
To do that it was proposed to insert the new
clause, by which the Government would have the
power to throw open such land as they could
get a fair general knowledge of, indicating the
different points on the map, and enabling them
to divide the land into lots suitable for selection.
In that way the difficulties or delays that might
oceur under the Bill would be averted. There
was a great deal of good land now open for
selection, and consequently that would be
available, and where there was sufficient know-
ledge to enable the Survey Department to
divide it into suitable lots, it would be dealt
with quickly ; but, with respect to land under
lease, some delay would necessarily occur—
possibly six months—before it could be dealt
with. As soon, however, as a general knowledge
of the country was obtained—sufficient, at any
rate, to enable the department to indicate it on
the maps—it would be divided into suitable lots
for selection. It was proposed that the clause
should remain in force for two years from the
time of the Act coming into operation. That
would give the Government ample power to deal
with any difficulty that might arise, as well as
any delay in carrying out survey before selec-
tion.

The Hox. Sz T. McILWRAITH said there
was no doubt that the strongest objection taken
to clause 40 was the delay that would occur
before the new system of survey before selection
could be carried out ; and he believed the Com-
mittee were quite prepared to give facilities to
the Government to do away with that objection.
It was proposed to remedy the defect by that
new clause. The Minister for Lands had said
nothing about the amount of land that was to be
thrown open for selection in a short time. Of
course, if the clause was passed, no more land
would be thrown open for selection. The Gov-
ernment did not want to take the power to
throw land open so as to deal with it. The clause
said that ““with respect to land which, before
the passing of this Act, had been proclaimed
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open for selection.” Of course the Government
might throw open 40,000,000 acres to-morrow ;
but there was no intention, he supposed, on the
part of the Govermment to throw open any
more ?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: No,
tainly not.

The Hox.

cer-

Sk T. McILWRAITH asked

whether much land had been thrown open
lately?
The MINISTER ¥OR LANDS: A very

small quantity.

The Hox. Sk T. McILWRAITH said that
of course it was understood that no proclamation
throwing land open for selection would be issued
after the passing of that clause ?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: No.

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH said he
would like to know how much land was open for
selection at the present time in the various
districts. Perhaps the hon. gentleman could tell
as near as possible without giving the exact
figures. If they knew that, they could see
exactly the part it would have in making pro-
vision for selection before survey.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said there
were now 20,965,000 acres open for selection
in different districts, but a great deal of that
was land of very little value to the selector.
The area open for selection on 1st January,
1884, was 21,143,800 acres, and since then
525,000 acres more had been thrown open.
The area withdrawn from selection during that
time was 177,760 acres, which included the area
temporarily reserved for railway purposes, The
area selected since the 1st January, 1884, was
524,468 acres ; so that now, as he had said, there
were 20,965,000 acres open.

The Hox. Sir T. MCILWRAITH : Can you
give the different distriets?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said the
report for the year issued from the Lands Office
would give the exact quantity open for selection
in the different districts. The figures he had
given were only an approximate estimate ; but
they were a very fair approximation of the
actual quantity. In round numbers, there were
20,000,000 acres open; but the greater part of
that land was under pastoral lease, and rent was
being paid on it by the different pastoral holders.
The quantities not under pastoral lease in the
northern portion of the colony were considerable.
In Normanton there was 18,000 square miles;
Cooktown, 13,000 square miles ; Port Douglas,
1,400 square miles; and in Cairns 1,124 square
miles. There was a very considerable area, at
all events, open, but whether it repr esented
land available to selectors was another question.
Perhaps not more than one-fourth would be
really available for selection.

Mr. BLACK said he had no doubt that, under
clause 40 as originally passed, a great deal of
delay would undoubtedly have occurred in selecs
tion. Of course it would take the department a
considerable time before they could get a staff
properly organised, but he was afraid, even with
that proposed amendment, there would be very
considerable delay. He would like the Minister
for Lands to explain what would be the probable
cost of selection in the immediate future, and
how selectors were to get on to the land. He
assumed, first of all, that up to the 1lst March
the existing Land Act would remain in force, and
that conditional and homestead selection would
continue under the old Act up to the 1st March.
Was he right ?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS: Yes.

Mr. BLACK : After that time, what would
be the course of selection to adopt? If surveys
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were going to be made in the office without a
surveyor going on to the land, it would be a
very unsatisfactory way indeed. They knew
the inconvenience that frequently took place
where selections had been taken up on the map,
which wounld happen in this case if the Govern-
ment proposed mapping under the clause as
follows :—

“The Governor in Conneil on the recommendation of
the howrd. may suspend the operation of so much of the
last preceding section as requires the land to be actually
surveyed and marked on the ground before it is pro-
claiied open for selection.”

He thought the Government first of all intended
to proclaim a certain district open for selec-
tion. Well, then they ‘‘may require the Sur-
veyor-General to divide the land into lots.”
Now, if it was not going to be survey on the
ground, he assumed it was going to be done
in the office, and that selectors who wished to
take up land would have to go to the office and
take their chance. They could not go on to the
land, in all probability, to identify the lot; and
it would be ﬁke a lottery at the land office. He
did not think it was a system which was likely
to give facilities for selection. He thought,
with all due deference to the Minister for
Lands, if the operations of the existing Act had
been continued until the surveys were ready, it
would have been a far preferable plan, and far
more satisfactory tothe selector. Hethought that
the conditional selection part of the present Act
had given fairly good satisfaction. The Minister
wight, if he thought fit, withdraw certain areas
from selection in the meantime, and have them
surveyed ; but he thought it would have been
betterif the existing arrangement, as faras agricul-
tural areas were concerned, had been continued
until the surveys were ready ; otherwise he failed
to see how a selector would know the land he
had selected. They were not going to put in
pegs on the ground. The Surveyor-General, in
his office, would draw up a plan, and cut it into
squares, mdlbcummately, without any reference
to the natural features of the country, with the
exception, of course, of creeks. Where those
creeks were well defined it would be so arranged
that they should form one side of the selection
but it would be impossible to lay down rules to
apply to all the natural features of the country.
He knew the inconvenience that existed in many
parts of the North in consequence of the hard-
and-fast rule having been laid down that a main
road a chain wide, was to goround every 640-acre
selection. The roads went up and down over
mountains, and were made in the most imprac-
ticable places. It entailed very heavy expense
on the divisional boards, having to make roads
in places where, with slight deviations, they
could have got round the side of mountains, and
have made a practicable road and have avoided
very heavy expense. He would like the Minister
for Lands to explain what amount of land might
be reasonably expected to be open for selection
by the 1st March, and whether he thought the
point he had raised as to letting the eustmcr
Act be in force until the new Act could be
brought into force would not possibly be more
satisfactory? He thought the clause would
cause much delay in selection, and he was
certain it would give rise to an immense amount
of dissatisfaction. The amount of land in the
northern districts that was open for selection in
1881 was given in a return dated the 29th Sep-
tember, 1881, where the portion in each district
north of Rockhampton thus open for selection
was given. To begin with—there was north of
Rockhampton 14,065,100 acres. That was in-
cluded in the red line which was proposed to
extend thirty miles from the coast. There was,
then, 14,065,100 acres open for selection, besides
which there was 852,000 acres selected at that
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time, and he did not think there had been much
more than half-a-million acres selected since ; so
that the land which would be probably available
foragricultural settlement north of Rockhampton
would probably be 13,233,100 acres, if that thirty-
mile line from the coast was still adhered to.

The MINISTER FOR TANDS said the
very large figures that the hon. gentleman had
just quoted represented the extent of country
open for selection north of Rockhampton ; but,
as the hon. gentleman knew very well, very few
new seclections were being taken up. A very
large proportion of it was utterly nnavailable for
selection, and it was no more available to them
now than it would be if it was in New

Guinea or in Hgypt. Not one man in a
hundred could ake any use of it at all

except for grazing purposes, and selectors did
not take wup land for grazing purposes
beyond the chief centres of population. The
hon. gentleman wanted to know the quantity of
land likely to be available for selection by the
1st March. Well, he did not think that any
land would be available by the 1st March,
and the country be marked on the map; it
would take some time after the Bill became
law to deal with. It might be open at that
time, if the lands now available for selection
were dealt with and thrown open for selection.
Possibly it might be done when the Bill became
law. The quantity of land available for selection
was not very great except in the north of the
colony, where it represented very little value
indeed. The only question was, whether the
clause which was now proposed would give facili-
ties to open up land sooner than it would be
without it. He thought there could be little
question of that, and the alternative proposition
of the hon. gentleman, that the provisions of
the Act of 1876 should be continued until the
surveys were ready, was objectionable, and par-
ticularly objectionable under that Bill, The
object here was to define the boundaries as
nearly as could be done, before the selectors
went on the land. The lon. gentleman said
the selectors would be at a great disadvan-
tage by going on to the land and being con-
fined within certain boundaries, and, if there
had been many selections made before them,
they had not much chance of getting good
land. The object of the clause was to divide
the land in such a way as to fairly cut it up
and give a fair advantage to each lot—mnot to
allow one man to pick the choice spots out of
it as was done under the present Act, and
make a great deal of the surrounding land
actually valueless. The Surveyor-General would
be able to apportion it in such a way as
to give fair value to all. That would be, to
a certain extent, provided by that clause,
assuming, of course, that the land open under
it and plotted on a map would be done
or recommnended by some person with a per-
sonal knowledge of the country so dealt with.
It would be more easily and quickly done in
that way than by actual regular survey ; because,
as no doubt the hon. gentleman knew, anybody
with a fair personal knowledge of a piece of
country—a run, for instance—could cut it up in
such a way as to give fair value to each lot. He
felt sure the hon. gentleman could do that, and
he was quite certain he could do it himself,
not with absolute accuracy, but so as to fairly
apportion the natural advantages of that part
of the country. The object of the clause was to
give the Government power to deal in that way
with land, in cases where they could obtain a
knowledge of it from the inspection of some
competent person.

Mr. BLACK said the hon. gentleman was
quite right fromn a pastoral point of view. Anyone
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acquainted with the country could cut up a
run into 10,000, 15,000, or 20,000 acre blocsk
with a certain amount of accuracy, but he had
been referring especially to agricultural areas,
where the lots would contain from 160 acres
upwards. He defied any man, no matter how
well informed, to sit down in his office with the
map, and cut it up into lots of that size so
as to give fair value to each; and the hardship
would be that the selector would not be able,
without a great deal of trouble, to identify on
the ground a piece of land he had seen on the
map in the office.  The agricultural selector,
especially if he only wanted a small piece of
land, had an undoubted right to get a good
piece ; it was all nonsense to say that he should
take the good and bad together. The plan the
hon. gentleman proposed would be the very best
way to enable a man, who went to the trouble of
exploring and working out on the ground the
selections he had seen defined on the map, to
pick out all the good ones. He would not
take the bad ones; and the Government might
clearly understand that, if they were going to
have survey before selection, they must survey
six or eight times the amount of land likely to
be selected. The selector was not likely to be
compelled to take whatever piece of land the
Government wished him to take. A far better
way to satisfy the selector would be to let him
go on the land and take what he thought would
best suit his purpose. It was not to the advan-
tage of the selector to have bad land, and it was
assuredly not for the benefit of the country.
The principle of cutting up the land in the office
would never work satisfactorily, no matter how
zood might be the advice the Government would
get ; and in very few cases where the land was
cut into small pieces would the selector be able
to identify the piece he had selected without an
immense amount of trouble.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said he did
not anticipate any difficulty in meeting all the
requirements of small agricultural settlement by
survey itself ; the only difficulty would be with
regard to the larger areas. The hon. gentleman
had said that surveved lands were not desirable,
but he maintained they were. Since he had
been in office some very choice pieces of country
had been surveyed, and then thrown open to
selection. They were surveyed with fair judg-
ment, so as to apportion the good land amongst
all the lots ; and the result was that there had
been five applications for every lot. Survey
before selection in those cases had secured to the
State a fair return for all the land, good and bad,
and they had not the choice spots picked out and
the rest left utterly valueless. In almost every
cage of that kind the effect was that the land was
readily taken up; whereas, in other cases, a man
who came after two or three others had had the
start of him generally found that the greater pro-
portion of the land open to him was very little
good, and went away disgusted. He would
repeat that the new clause was chiefly applicable
to grazing areas ; the smaller areas would be dealt
with by survey before selection.

Mr, NORTON said he foresaw a great difficulty
in working the clause. He could understand
how the divisions would be made and the boun-
daries plotted on a map in the office, but who on
earth was to know where the boundary was if it
were not marked on the ground? It would lead to
endless disputes and misunderstandings. There
was one point he would like the hon. Minister
for Lands to explain. Take the case of a run,
a portion of which had been selected. After the
Act came into force the lessee had six months to
decide whether he would come under the Act or
not, and in the meantime the run was all open to
selection.  Perhaps he might wait till the end of
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the six months before asking to come under the
Act, and then how was the run to be divided ?
‘Was all that land that had been taken up during
the six months after the Ist of March, to be
included in the run?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS : Yes.

Mr. NORTON: Then it simply limited the
division of the run in such a form that the land
open to selection must be the resumed half
under the new Act. Would the present home-
stead areas be open for selection too? There
were some runs the whole of which had been
resumed for homesteads ; and there was no pro-
vision now made for homestead selections being
made separate ; and even if there were, it did not
follow that the present homnestead areas would be
homestead areas under the new Act. In some
cases the whole of runs would be subject to selec-
tion after the 1st March, so that when the sub-
division was made, and the lessee was asked to
come under the new Act, there would be a great
deal of contention on account of the selection
that had taken place in the meantime.

Mr. PALMER said he wanted some informa-
tion regarding the 18,000 square iniles in the
Burke district, and the 14,000 square miles in the
Cook distriet, which the Minister for Lands said
would be thrown open to selection after the Bill
became law. Many of the runs in those two
areas were quite unknown to the department ;
and he would ask whether they were to be
thrown open as grazing farms or agricultural
areas ? There were a great many difficulties in
connection with such country, as a great deal of
it was not available for selection, a large amount
consisting of mangrove creeks and swamps and
desert ridges. He thought the balf of 18,000
square miles would be nearer the mark. At the
same time there were places where grazing fanns
might be sought after ; and if the Minister for
Lands could give any information as to how
much of that large quantity would be availalle
for selection, it would be interesting, not only
to him, but perhaps to other members of the
Committee.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said no doubt
sufficient land for all possible requirements
would be thrown open by the board, though a
great deal of that to which the hon. member had
referred would be totally unused for a great
number of years. With regard to the remarks
of the hon. member for Port Curtis, who con-
tended that delay must occur from the process of
dividing runs, he might inform the hon. gentle-
man that delays of that kind could not be
provided against. They were inevitable in the
change from the present land laws to the system
laid down in the Bill. All that could be done
was to have as little delay as possible,

Mr. NORTON : Will selection go on in the
meantime ?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said it would
go on under the present law until the 1st March,
when the new Act would come into operation ;
and then only in districts where land was avail-
able for selection, consistent with the terms of
the new Act.

Mr. NORTON said the hon. gentleman did
not appear to have followed him in his remarks on
the difficulty he foresaw. When the Bill became
law, the pastoral lessee would have the option of
retaining his present lease, or of bringing his run
under the provisions of the new Act ; and he had
six months to consider the matter. If he chose
the latter alternative his run would be divided,
and he would receive a lease of one-half for
ten years. But if he wished to consider for a
month or two, after the Bill became law, whether
he would come under its provisions or not,
selection might go on all the time on one-half of
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the run, and the whole of that half might be
taken up. Then when the division was made
there might be nothing left for which the run--
holder could get a lease. His only chance would
be to put his application in as soon as the Bill
bhecame law, if he wished to save any of his
country at all.

The PREMIER said that difficulties must
necessarily arise when substituting a new system
for an old one, but that alluded to by the hon,
member was not so great after all. In the first
place, all the runs in the settled districts were
well known, They had been occupied for many
years, and the commissioner would be able
before the 1st March to give the Lands Depart-
ment very full information respecting them. e
would Dbe able to indicate pretty clearly
where the division of a run would take
place, in the event of application being made.
He believed that, in ninety cases out of
a  hundred, application would be made to
divide the run; and the division would be made
by the board on the recommendation of the
commissioner. Probably, anybody who knew
the country would be able to say — not
precisely where the boundary was, but which
part of a run would be in the leased half,
and which part in the resumed half. It
would be to the interests of the lessees, in
what used to be called the settled districts, to
avail themselves of the provisions of the Act as
quickly as possible ; otherwise they would be
liable to selection all over their runs, as at
present. The difficulty would be got over to the
extent that land would be available for settle-
ment until survey was possible, and that was the
only thing the Government could do.

Mr. NORTON said that, as the difficulty
related more particularly to those runs which
were now open to selection, the only thing left
to the lessee was to decide at once whether they
would come under the Act or not.

The PREMIER : It is the most sensible thing
to do.

Mr. NORTON : But if they did not avail
themselves of it until the Bill became law it
might be of no use to them at all,

Mr. MIDGLEY said the Committee had
distinctly expressed its opinion on the subject
of survey before selection; and no doubt the
acceptance of that principle would result in some
degree of difficulty to the Lands Department.
However that might be, he thought the proposal
contained in the 3rd subsection of the new clause
—to continue the present state of things with
regard to surveys for a period of two years—was
too long. It simply meant that the existing
system would be continued between two and
three years longer; and it ought noi to take
all that time to put into operation the wishes
of the Committee on that subject. He would
prefer to see the period reduced to one
year; and that, he believed, would be accept-
able to the majority of hon. members. The
land now thrown open for selection comprised
some of the best lands in the colony, and it was
desirable that they should be disposed of in the
best way—which the Committee had decided to
he survey before selection. He would commend
the suggestion he had made—as to reducing the
period from two years to one year—to the con-
sideration of the Government.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said that,
after the opinion expressed over and over again
by the Government with regard to survey
hefore selection, the Committee might be satis-
fied that they would do everything possible
to carry out that principle.  The clause was
proposed to enable the Government to get over
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certain difficulties—difficulties which the public
would be very impatient about, because they
would not understand the amount of work to
be arranged for in order to meet all the
requirements of survey before selection. 1In
some parts of the colony, and especially in the
far northern portions, it was almost impossible
that the land could be surveyed fast enough to
keep pace with the requirements of the public
for settlement ; and two years was not too long
a time to overcome that difficulty. If one, two,
or three men wished to settle in a far northern
district it would not be fair to exclude them,
and yet it would be hardly possible, during the
first year or two, to send a surveyor to survey
the land for them; and to survey five or six
times as much land as was likely to be talken up
meant the expenditure of a great deal of money
on which there would be no retnrn within a
reasonable time. In the southern portion of
the colony no doubt a year would be ample ;
but at the other extremity of it two years would
not be too much. The clause would only be
avalled of where it was otherwise impossible
to keep pace with the demands of settlement.

Mr. GRIMES said his fear was that if the
new clause were inserted the department would
not think it necessary to push on with surveys as
fast as they would if the Bill remained as it was.
The advantages of survey before selection were
so great, both to the State and to the selector,
that he felt almost afraid to support the proposed
new clause. There was no doubt, as remarked
by the hon. mewnber for Mackay, that the clause
would not work in agricultural areas, where it
was necessary that each selection should have a
fair share of good land, and where it was neces-
sary to provide suitable roads. On grazing areas
there was not the same necessity for good roads,
as they would not be so thickly populated. He
was afraid the clause wouldtend to delay survey,
and should like to see the time reduced to one
year.

The PREMIER said the Government might
fairly ask to be trusted to that extent. The
clause did not apply to any land acquired under
the Bill, but only to land already open to selec-
tion, most of which for many years past might
have been taken up without any survey at all.
It did not even extend to the whole of that,
but only to such parts of it as could be laid off
on a map without actual survey. The Govern-
ment would not be able to send surveyors all
over the colony at once. In many parts there
would be a demand for settlement before it was
possible to survey, and it was absolutely neces-
sary that selection should not be delayed. Two
years was not too long a time to ask for under
the circumstances. He should be glad if surveys
could be so organised as to start within six
months, but they could not command surveyors
by simply saying that they wanted them. Not
as many surveyors might be procurable as were
required; but, however that might be, it was
important not to stop selection.

Mr., BLACK said he was certain the clause
would mislead selectors, by inducing them to
believe that they could take up land in the old
method, which they would not be able to do in a
satisfactory way. It was much easier, as the
Premier knew, to say, ¢ We want surveyors,”
than to engage them. KEven under the present
system, where a man was allowed to select his
land before survey, he had known cases where,
for two, three, and even four years, selectors had
been unable to get their land surveyed. What
would be the condition of things under the pro-
posed clause? The Surveyor-General would sit
in his office, and cut up a block of land into
squares or oblongs. How on earth was the
selector to know where his land was?
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The PREMIER : Have you read the clause ?

Mr. BLACK said he had read the clause, and
that would be the effect of it, The Government
would not be able to get surveyors even to
show a selector where his land was located
which he had taken up for fAfty years.
The hon. the Minister for Lands had talked
about a selection up north, and said that if only
two or three selections were made in one locality
the department would not be able to send a
surveyor up. His (Mr. Black’s) objection to the
clause applied with much greater force so far as
that country was concerned. A large portion of
it was composed of scrub land and mountain
ranges—land that particularly required to be
surveyed before selection. It would be more
difficult to mark upon a map land up there
that was suitable for agricultural settlement
than in any other part of the colony. He looked
upon the two years’ extension as a perfect fraud
upon the selector. It was not going to give
him land at all.  The Minister for Lands
would have done far better if he had accepted
his (Mr. Black’s) proposal to allow the present
systemn of selection before survey to continue
until he was ready with his surveyors. He
was sure that the Treasury would benefit by
it.

Mr. MACFARLANE said he would like to
ask the Minister for Lands, would it not be
better to exempt agricultural lands from the
clause altogether, and make it apply to
only grazing areas? The great difficulty, as
pointed out by the hon. member for Mackay,
would be in marking out selections in agricultural
areas. That difficulty would not be felt with
regard to large areas; and if the clause were
made to apply to large areas only it might meet
the case.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS saidit would
be only in very rare cases that the power con-
ferred by the clause would be availed of in agri-
cultural areas; and he thought the Government
might be trusted to deal with such cases as they
thought necessary or desirable under the circum-
stances. He should very much prefer that all
agricultural land was surveyed before selec-
tion ; but there might occasionally be a case
where there was a small area of land that was
particularly well known, and it would be an
expensive matter to send a surveyor out at any
special time; and such a case might be dealt with
as the clause provided. There were numerous
cases in the southern parts of the colony where
there were small portions of land lying between
different selections that were sufficiently well
known to enable the Survey Department to
divide them fairly ; and it was to provide for
cases of that kind that the clause was specially
intended.

Mr. BLACK said he would be quite prepared
to trust the sincerity of the Government if he
thought they had got any well-digested scheme
or proposal to submit to the Committee ; but for
the Surveyor-Greneral, sitting in his office, to
mark off agricultural selections on a map, was so
outrageous to his mind that he did not think
the Government ought to be trusted in the
matter at all, The Minister for Lands, he
believed, knew perfectly well how to cut up
a run into grazing areas—he gave the hon. gen-
tleman full credit for that; but he maintained
that he had not the experience—he did not think
he had had it practically, and certainly by his
utterances he had shown that he had no defi-

nite knowledge of what the requirements of an
agricultural area were. He (Mr, Black) was
therefore not preparved to frust the good inten-
tions of the Government, because at the present
i time they had no practical scheme to lay before
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the Committee as to how agricultural settlement
was to continue after the 1st March, without
surveys having been ade,

The PREMIER said the clause only applied
to those portions of land already proclaimed
open to selection, which it was practicable to
divide into lots without actual survey, and to
indicate the position of such lots by means of
maps or plans, and by reference to known or
marked boundaries or starting points. If there
was no known or marked boundary or starting
point the thing could not be done; the clause
would not come into  operation, and conse-
quently could not take effect. With regard
to the dense scrubs of the northern portion
of the colony, of course the clause could not
apply in cases of that kind; and if the hon.
member would remember, for once, that there
were other portions of the colony besides the
North, he would be aware that there were many
places in the sonthern districts where there were
small pieces of land adjoining other selections—
between different selections—lots that had been
forfeited or offered at auction and not sold, that
might be dealt with under the clause. That was
the class of lands to which it wasintended to apply.
The hon. gentleman had referred to lands that
would not be affected by the clause at all ; and
then asked, triumphantly, how the clause was
going to work with respect to them. It simply
would not work at all in respect of such lands ; 1t
was not framed to deal with them in any way.

Mr. BLACK said, how then did the homn.
gentleman intend to deal with the portions of
land he (Mr. Black) had referred to ?

The PREMIER : By survey.

Mr. BLACK: He was quite prepared to
admit there were two parts of the colony—North
and South. It was a thing he had often pointed
out, and had urged that it would be better for the
Governinent, inlegislating, to consider the varied
conditions of both parts; but instead of that
their legislation was entirely in the interests of
the southern portion. He quite agreed with the
hon. gentleman that the Northern scrub lands
could not belaid down on maps by the Surveyor-
General in his office, and what was he going to
do with them?

The PREMIER : Survey them.

Mr. BLACK : The Minister for Lands had
pointed out that it would be one or two years
before the land could be surveyed by the survey
staff.,

HThe MINISTER FOR LANDS: Not at
all.

Mr. BLACK : The hon. gentleman did not
intend to send the survey staff up north, and
how was the work to be done? It had been im-
possible up to the present time to get surveys
carried out, and he could see now that the effect
would be—he did not say it was the intention
of the Government —Dbut the effect would be
that settlement in the North would be brought
to a standstill for twelve or eighteen months at
the very least. That was inevitable.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said the
hon. gentleman had stated that nothing in the
way of surveys would be done under the Bill
for about two years, That was a perfectly
gratuitous assumption. Why did he assume
anything of the kind? He (the Minister for
Lands) was prepared to admit that the delays
that had arisen were great ; but they would not
be so great under the new system as under the
old, because, when men took up land five, ten, or
twenty miles from each other, a surveyor could
not be sent out to survey each ‘selection. And it
was not desirable that selections should be
taken up in that way. It was not settlement,
but merely securing the land for other pur-

lesdi—4 1
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poses—Dpicking up spots here and there, as had
been done to a considerable extent up north.
The clause would avert mischief of that kind. It
would admit of selections being taken up close
to each other, and the land could be settled
upon at once. The clause was only intended as
an alternative to be applied in places where,
owing to special circumstances, it was not pos-
sible to get land surveyed in time for selection ;
s0 that people might settle upon it at once and it
might be surveyed afterwards.

Mr. PALMER said one difficulty he saw in
the operation of the clause was this; which
would illustrate the point raised by the hon.
member for Mackay : The selector of a grazing
farm was compelled to fence within three years ;
his great anxiety would be to put up a boundary
fence, and_when the Jand came to be surveyed
he might have to pull his fence down again if
the Minister for Lands carried the Act out
strictly. That difficulty had occurred to
him ; but he rose more particularly to ask the
Minister for Lands a question respecting the
occupasion licenses he was going to give to
precede selection in the unsettled districts.
It would De necessary for anyone taking
up one of those licenses to fence and im-
prove his holding. The hon. gentleman had
told them. of 18,000 miles and 14,000 miles in
two districts—a32,000 miles—that had never been
held under lease. In the case of occupation
licenses some improvements were necessary for
holding the country, such as fencing. Would
those improvements be considered ?

Mr. BLACK said the Minister for Lands had
hefore referred to people picking out the eyes of
the country. He believed he referred specially
to the northern portion of the eolony, and he also
believed that he was specially referring to those
who took upsugar lands. On one occaston, when
he (Mr. Black) was not present, the hon. gentle-
man used pretty strong language on that subject.
It was as well to understand what had been
done, because if anything had been done against
the law it was the duty of the Minister for Lands
to punish those who bad offended. Those who
had taken up sugar lands had done more to
develop the agricultural industry than probably
any other class, and they had developed it to
very good purposes. It was justas well, now
they were on the subject, that the Committee
should understand what the agriculture of
Queensland  really consisted of. He had
taken the trouble to take an extract from
some statistics recently laid upon the table
of the House, by which it appeared that, in the
year 1877, there were 8,444 acres under wheat.
Six years later, in 1883, there were only 9,879
acres—a very slight increase in wheat. With
regard to maize, in May, 1877, there were 44,718
acres under maize, and in 1883, 56,463 acres—
not a very great increase considering the great
increase in the population which had settled in
the southern part of the colony. When they
came to sugar-cane, they found that, whereas
there were only 15,220 acres under cane
in 1877, in 1883 there were 47,897 acres—
a greater increase in acreage than in the
whole of the rest of the agriculture of
Queensland  together. Considering that that
industry had made such progress during those
six years, it showed that those who had gone in
for it had done so in a thoroughly bond Jide
manner, and ought not to be so frequently
denounced as ha,ving picked out the eyes of the
country. If they had, they had put it to some
very good use; and he thought that the more
m'uculture, as a whole, was enwuumed in the
colony of QQueensland the better it would be for
the country, and certainly better for the Govern’
ment in power for the time being.
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Mr. GRIMES said the hon. gentleman’s
remarks would have had more force if he had
given them the proportion in the increase of sugar
to the amount of land that had been selected as
sugar land. Tt was probable that ten times the
amount of land had been selected for that pur-
pose, as the increase in sugar would represent.

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH said he
knew the Minister for Lands had been paying a
good deal of attention to the amount of selection
that had been going on in the different districts
lately, and it would be interesting to know the
amount and character of the selection that had
been going on, as showing the public feeling with
regard to the Bill at present before them. Had
any stimulus been given to selection, or had
selection slackened off 7 Had the statistics of the
department, while the Bill had been under
discussion, shown anything with regard to its
effect upon the public mind? He had hearda
great deal about selection going on ona large scale
in some districts, and he had heard that contra-
dicted. But the Minister for Lands, who had
got all those figures at his fingers’ ends, could
give the information at once.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said he did
not happen to have the figures at his fingers’ ends,
so that he could not speak definitely. There
was not a very great difference in the (uantity
of land that had been taken up during
the last three months, as compared with the
three months previous. In some districts it had
increased, and in others it had not.  The general
results had not been very widely different from
those of the previous twelve months.

Mr. PALMER said he had asked the Minister
for Lands a question about the improvements
upon land held under occupation licenses, and he
had not received any answer.

The MINISTER FOR LAXNDS said he
believed the hon. gentleman asked whether

holders of occupation licenses were likely to put
up himprovements. He could not say; it was a
mastter for themselves to determine whether the
land was worth the e\penrhtmc

Myr. PALMER : There is no compensation
given?

The MINISTER FOR LANDS : No.

Question put and passed.

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said there
was an addition to paragraph 3 of clause 53,
as follows :

“Or tomake the pre wnl)( d tmprovements upon any

part ot such whole area.
That provided that improvements that might be
put upon one block, in the case of two or more
contiguous selections, would suffice to cover the
amount of improvements required to be put upon
the whole arca of the holding.

Ainendment agreed to ; and clause, asamended,
put and passed.

Ou clause Hd— ¢ Lease to Issue”—

The MINISTER FOR LANDS said there
was a correction to be made in the clause, in
lines 1 and 3 of subsection (f} of the 4th sub-
section. The words **square mile” were used
instead of the word ‘“acre.” Hemoved that the
words “*square mile” be omitted in each case
with a view of inserting the word ““ acre.

Amendment agreed to; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

On clause 57, as follows :

“The restrietions hercinbelore iimposed against any
person holiling a farm, or agninst auy cue n hold-
ing more than the preseribed area of land as o faro or
farms, slutll not apply to any person who shall become
the lessee of any such furm or farins as the trastec of
the estate ot a previous lessee under the Inws refating
to the adiministration ot the estates of insolvent persons,
or as the executoy or administrator of a deceased lesy
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The T’R]‘IM'IF R said he proposed to insert
after the word *“persons,” in the 6Gth line of the
clause, the words ‘‘or as the trustee of a settle-
ment m(ule in consideration of marriage.” There
was, he thought, no reason why a married woman
should not hold a selection for her own use ; be-
fore, there was certainly no reason why a young
woman holding one should not be allowed to keep
it after she :mt married.

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH asked if
the amendwment was in view of any particular
contingency ?

The PRIEMIER said he had stated that it
would apply to a case of a youny woman who
had a selection, and who inarried, if her hushand
also had a seléction. Accordmo to the Bill he
would not be able to keep both, “and the amend-
ment provided that the property could he settled
on the wife.

Amendment agreed to ; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

On clause 111—* Ringbarking and destruetion
of timber fmlnuden except with connnissioner’s
permission”—

The MINISTER TOR LANDS said theve
He pro-
posed to insert after the words ** (if any),” in the
last line of the 2nd paragraph, the words “‘as
may be prescribed, or, if no conditions are pre-
seribed.”

Amendment agreed to ; and clause, as amended,
put and passed.

On clause 119, as follows

<y lessee exercising the vight of depasturing on the
resinned part of a run under Part ILL of this Act. or o
licensce under Part VI of this Act. shall not be entitled
to impound the horses or cattle (not being cotire horses
or bulls) of a selector of an jendtural farm found
trespassing on the Jand which ix subjeet to the right of
depasturing ov license to ogenpy. and within three years
from the (ths‘ of the selector’s license, except in ¢ase of
wilful trespass, or unless the selector depastures on lLis
selection more horses or eattle than at the rate ol one
for every ten acres of the land comnprised in the sclec-
tion which is not so oce u)m'(l as to be unavailable for
depasturing such horses ov cattle.”

The PREMIER said his attention had been
called that morning by an hon. gentleman oppo-
site to what was clearly an omission in the clause.
Tt did not deal with the case of a selector who
was actually sepa ratedl by a fence from his
neighbour’s land ; but would allow, except in case
of wilful trespass, the stock to get through
the fence and wraze upon the nu'rhlmm B l.md
The clause was intended to <L])1)1} only to un-
fenced houndaries, and not to cases of stock
going on the othier side of a fence.  To make the
necessary altomtwn, the clause should read—
after the word “ farm” in the th line
“ found trespassing on any land which is subject to the
right of devasturing or license to oceupy, and ix ot
\01).11.110(1 fromn the seleetion by a sufficient fenee.” ete.
The amendueut would not make any difference
in the meaning of the clamse, and it was clearly
an omission tl at it had nut heen inserted.  He
moved tlmt the word “the” before the word
““Jand,” on the 5th line of the clanse, be nmitted,
with a view of inserting the word ** any.

Amendment agreed to.

The PREMIER movedthatthe word “ within™
in the Gth line be omitted, with the view of
inserting the following—* is not separated from
the selection 1>V a suihu«,nt fence until after the
expiration of.”

Amendment agreed to ; and clause, asamended,
put and passed.

On the wotion of the MINISTER FOR
LANDS, the Cnatryax left the chair, and
reported the Bill to the House with farther
<L111911({nl(‘11tﬁ

The report was adopted.
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The MINTSTER FOR LANDS moved that
the third reading of the Bill stand an Order of
the Day for Tuesday next.

The Ho~. Str T. McILWRAITH : Will the
Bill be reprinted and ready forthe Upper House
by that time?

The PREMIER : There will be no difficulty
about that, because the Bill is reprinted now,
The Printing Office is keeping ahead of the work.
The Bill is all printed now, with the exception
of the amendinents made this afternoon.

Question put and passed.

SUPPLY.

The COLONTAL TREASURER moved that
the Speaker leave the chair, and the House
resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole to
consider the Supply to be granted to Her
Majesty.

The Hox., Sir T. McILWRAITH said: Mr.
Speaker, —Before going into Committee of Supply
T'wish to call the attention of the House to two
or three matters which the urgency of the
Land Bill has precluded from being brought
before the House sooner, and some of them
are not inappropriate to the Land Bill which
we have just passed. We have seen, during
the long discussions we have had on the
method of dealing with the lands of the
colony, the summary way in which the pastoral
lessees have been dealt with in many cases. T
have now to direct the attention of the House to
one case in which we see how a pastoral lessee,
favoured by the (rovernment, may meet with a
fortune which certainly does not accrue to the
class under the legislation of the other side. I
refer to the case of Mrv, P. F. Macdonald, a
claim which was settled during the recess by
the Government in a somewhat extraordinary
fashion. It is extraovdinary, because it is desti-
tute of any precedent so far as I have been able
to find in past times in this colony, and it is
extraordinary also in being such a deviation from
the course of procedure that has been laid
down by the present Government in regard to
dealing with this claim. I do not wish to go
very much into the details of the original claim
as 1t came before this House. Hon. members
will remember that Mr. Macdonald made a claim
against the Government for having ousted him
from certain pastoral properties to which he said
he had a right. T believe it was conceded that
he actually had a right, and that he did not give
up that right by leaving the blocks of country
which he held. Before hebecamea member of the
Househebroughthisclaim beforetheconrtsof law,
and got a verdict for over £17,000 at Rockhamp-
ton. At that time the Premier of the colony, now
Chief Justice Lilley, was Mr. Macdonald’s counsel,
and of course he was then vice-president of the
Executive Council, when the question was con-
sidered by the Cabinet. My, Macdonald re-
ceived a verdict ; but notwithstanding that, the
impression of the public and the impression of the
Ministry was so strong, and it was seen so clearly
that that verdict was for such an exorbitant
amount, that the Govermment over which Mr,
Lilley presided declined to pay the sum that
had been awarded; and on an appeal to the
Supreme Court the judgment was set aside on
technical grounds which I do not desire to go
into now, so that Mr. Macdonald had no
remedy. However, he came into Parliament in
1874 and sat opposite to the Government then
in power—which was the same party as the
present—and he got some of his fiiends to bring
his claims before the House. The question was
referred to o committee-—a fuir one, composed
of mewmbers from both sides——and M. Miles, the
present Minister for Wo was one of the
members, and Mr. T. B, Stephen., a late
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Minister for Lands, another. The committee
deliberated on the case, and everyone who looks
at the counstitution of the committee will see
at once that it was by no means an unfair one.
In fact, when we look at its constitution we are
rather inclined to think that it had a favourable
leaning towards any claim Mr. Macdonald would
have. It consisted of Mr. Graham, the mover,
Mr. Fitzgerald, Mr. T. B. Stephens, Mr. Foote,
Mr. Miles, and Mr. Buzacott. Well, anyone would
see from the constitution of that committee that
it would not be expected that Mr. Macdonald
would get an unfavourable or unjust verdict.
After due deliberation they came to the conclu-
sion that they would recommend the House to
grant compensation to the extent of £6,000;
Dut before they came to that conclusion, how-
ever, an amendment was moved by Mr,
Stephens that only £5,000 be recommended.
That amendment was lost; but I wish to
draw the attention of the House to the one fact
that Mr. Miles was one of those who voted for
Mr. Stephens’ motion that the £6,000 should be
reduced to £5,000. Well, the report of the com-
mittee came before the House, and it was adopted
without discussion on the motion of Mr. Buzacott,
who intimated that he would go into the whole
facts of the case when the House went into
Committee of the Whole to consider the amount
to be granted. Accordingly, the report was
moved and adopted as a formal matter and
without any discussion ; the only member who
spoke being Mr. Buzacott. But the impor-
tant point is that the House adopted the
report without committing itself to anything, and
reserved its real decision until the matter was
brought forward again, either in the shapeof a
formal motion or in the shape of an item on the
Supplementary Estimates. It never came before
the House again in the shape of a motion, but
the Government put the amount of £6,000 on the
Supplementary Kstimates in1874. Mr., Buzacott
never required to bring forward a motion on the
subject, but the Government took all the respon-
sibility of putting the amount on the Estimates ;
and the reason for that was that Mr. Stephens,
who was then Minister for Lands, having con-
sented in the committee to a grant to the extent
of £5,000 being made, the Government thought
they were justified in putting that sum, at all
events, on the Lstimates, although they really
fixed the amount at £6,000. Moreover, the item
was rejected after discussion, and I remember
very well the debate that took place on the

question. I remember the facts most dis-
tinetly, although, T suppose, they were

fresher in the memory of most hon. mem-
bers then than they are now. Subsequently,
in 1876, the (Government again put the £6,000 on
the Estimates; that was during Mr. Thorn’s
Government. But T must not forget to keep up
the history of Mr. Macdonald during all this
time. The House was divided in somewhat the
same way as it is now ; the party who call them-
selves the Liberals were sitting where they are
now, and the other side opposite to them. DMr.
Macdonald was sitting with the Opposition ;
but when he saw his claim getting a little
shaky by the manner in which it was
being advanced by his friends, and that it was
taken up by the Liberals, whowanted votes—one
of whom was Mr. Grifith, then an aspiring
young Attorney-General-—Mr. Macdonald gra-
dually worked down the benches, and in 1876 he
slid over to the other side, when his claim was
put down on the Hstimates for the second time.
His conduet was so glaringly politically immoral
that the House resented it. There was not a
man in the House who did not resent the conduct
of that man when he wayx sitbing in Parliament
in1s76.  Wenat upall night disewssing the ques-
tion, and the Goverlzuent were so satistied withthe
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debate on the subject that they withdrew the
amount of £6,000 from the Estimates. The
decision of the country was so apparent that
they could do nothing else; the item was
abandoned, and it has never been seen since.
Mr. Macdonald’s conduct was politically corrupt
in the highest degree. Ido not think you know
him as well as I do, Mr. Speaker, although, while
you do not say much, you have an intimate
knowledge of the inner political Jife of most
of us; but I may say this: that there never
was a mall to whom the expression of * blue-
bloaded Tovy,” applied by the hon. member for
Townsville to the Minister for Lands, could be
better applied than to Mr. Macdonald, The
man was the most obstructive piece of old
Toryism I ever saw. He had no notion of any-
thing but that which concerned himself, and he
did notlunw else during the few years of
his 1)011t1<,(;f life than endeavour to advance
his own claiins against the Government. He
had no polities hesides that, and, of course the
rest of the matters that acerued with it. He
called himself a member of the party which called
itself the Liberal party, and when he graduated
over to those benches he bloomed into as thorough
a Liberal as ever there was. Not only that, but
he got the respect and fear of the party; he ot
the control over it by means of the Press. e
bought a Liberal paper, and he went in for the
most extraordinary Liberal notions that have ever
been promulgated in this House. He was acting,
I believe, most of this time, under the shrewd
advice of the present Premier ; at all events he
took his advice. In 1876 another point arose,
and that was this: Although the House had
decided as clearly as possible that it was not a
right thing that the man should be given £6,000
for what were virtually political services—with
a grievance at the bottom, I admit—yet the
Attomey General of the day managed, to a cer-
tain extent in defiance of P‘uhament to give
him an amount that Parliament had never been
asked for. In that year Mr. Macdonald was
granted the whole of the expenses to which
he had been put in the previous lawsuits.
You know, Mr. Speaker, that the House has
before ignored the Rockhampton verdiet of 1879,
just as it ignored the verdict of 18649, The House
has ignored that, and the country hax ignored it
too, notwithstanding that the Attorney-(ieneral
found means to pay Mr. Macdonald’s expenses
by putting the amount on the Supplementary
Estimates.

The PREMIER : Tt was not voted.

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH : It was
voted.

The PREMIER : Tt was put on, but the
House was never asked to vote it.

The Hox, Sir T. McILWRAITH : Surely
the hon. member does not intend to take refuge
under such a despicable subterfuge as that ! The
amount was put on the Supplementary Isti-
mates, and was voted by the House.

The PREMIER : No.

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH :
does the hon. member mean ?

The PREMIER : The money was paid under
parliamentary authority without being voted.

The Hov. Sir T. McILWRAITH : It was on
the ordinary Supplementary Kstimates in the
year 1877, and was voted on the motion of the
Colonial Treasurer that £2,165 be granted for the
claim of P. Macdonald.

The PREMIER : That is a question of fact.

The Hox. Str T. McILWRAITH : Tknow it
was voted, because I had a good deal to say before
it was voted. If the hon. gentleman will turn
o page 123 of the "“Votgs aud Proceedings”

What
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of 1877 he will find that the Treasurer proposed,
in the Supplementary Estimates, ““ Taxed costs,
Macdonald ». Tully, £2,165 17s. 7d.,” which was
voted by the House.

The PREMIER: No.
The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH: What

is the use of the hon. gentleman ejaculating
“No”? I say it was, and the vote was registered
in the House. I know what the hon. member
is driving at. He wishes to establish the fact
that he followed exactly the samne course that he
has done at the present time. He has taken care
that we do not vote the amount on the Estimates,
becatse he has put it in Schedule B, T have
brought the matter down to 1876, The hon.
member found means by which he paid the law
costs to which My, Macdonald had been put,
although he was not able to find meansto pay
the actual amount of the verdict itself. I have
already referred to the political services of My,
Macdonald, and to the changed aspect in which
the other side viewed the claim put forward by
him. In 1879 he went to law again and got a
verdict in the court at Rockhampton for £13,000.
But the Government of the day took no notice
of that, because they regarded that verdict just
in the same way as they regarded the verdict of
1869. It was looked upon as one of the most
preposterous cases that had ever been brought
forward, considering the amount of money Mr.
Macdonald claimed. ¥ was also well known
that the Government were not in such a position
in 1879 to meet the action as they would have
been had he brought it five or six years sooner,
which he really ought to have done and was
encouraged to do. The position of the Govern-
ment was that the witnesses upon whom they
relied to prove their case could not be brought
forward. Mr. Macdonald had chosen the proper
time for himself to bring his claim forward,
because then the witnesses who could prove
matters of fact when the advanced claim had not
been made by him were out of the way. At all
events, he got a verdict for £13,000. The late
Government did not pay that amount, but it has
been paid by the present (Government, with these
additions :—The amount of the verdict was
£13,700. In addition to that, the Governiment
paid Mr. Macdonald the interest on that at 8
per cent. from the date of the claim, amounting
to £3,955. They also paid the taxed costs,
£3,472, and the interest on the taxed costs from
the time of the lawsuit until the time it was
1)@1(1 £769. That gives atotal payment of £21,903.
Jesides that there had previously been pald
by the (Government of the day, in 1877, a sum
of £2,166 as costs, making a total payment to
Mr. Macdonald of about £24,069. Butthat was
not all. There was theamount of costs the Govern-
ment had to pay for themselves in connection
with the actions—an amount up to a certain
date, the details of which I have never been
able to get. At all events, the actual lawyers’
expenses paid by the Government were £1,995.
There is, therefore, a certain payment of £26,064
to Mr. Macdonald and the Governmient Iawyels
up to the present time on this miserable claim.
I have shown that the cost to the country at the
present time of this case of Mr. Macdonald’s has
been £26,064, not including certain legal expenses,
the amount of which T have not been able to find,
and which have accrued since the trial at Rock-
hampton in 1879, T have taken for that trial the
amount of £954; but T am given to understand
that some amounts have been paid since, which
T cannot find in the return. The total amount
has been £26,064 ; and out of that amount Mr.
Macdonald has veceived for his claim £24,069,

the balance going to pay the lawyers who were
engaged on behalf of the Crown. Now, I think
I hon, wmepbers who have followed me — and
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especially those who remember the circumstances
of the case, and the career of Mr. Macdonald
in this House——will acknowledg‘e that this is a
great waste of the public funds in paying a claim
for which there was originally very little founda-
tion. Going back, I acknowledge that Mr.

Macdonald was halshly treated by the Govern-
ment departments ; but if we consider the kind
of lease which he held, and the way in which
those leases have been treated since by this
House and by the other House, we shall see at
once that the daniages that were given to him
by the jury, both in the trial at Rocldmmpton in
1869, and “also in 1879, were excessive. That
they were felt to be excessive iz the real
reason why no Government has paid the claim
until the present (rovernment got into office.
I have explained that the verdict in 1869 was
got in Rockhampton ; Chief Justice Lilley, then
the Premier, being the advocate for the claimant,
One would have thou"ht that the claim would
then have been settled, but it was not settled,
and for this plain reason: that even Mr.
Macdonald’s counsel never dreamt that he was
entitled to any such sum as was awarded to him
by the jury. It was admitted—1I forget the date,
but it is an historical fact—that that was the
reason why the Lilley GGovernment did not pay
the claim.  The amount awarded was excessive,
and we can easily understand the circumstances
under which a verdict of that sort would be
given. The Government, as a rule, comes off
second-best in a case of this sort when it goes to
a jury; while we, on the other hand, can look
more dispassionately at all the circumstances of
the case. It was said that, as Mr. Macdonald
brought his claim ten years afterwards, in 1879,
and recovered £13,000, we should then have
acknowledged the claim and paid it. To that
there are two answers. In the first place, the
same reason that operated to make the verdict
excessive in 1869 existed in 1879—that is, that
the judges refused to remove the trial from
Rockhampton to some other place where a more
dispassionate verdict might be expected. It was
alocal verdict in both cases, and 1t was a verdict
against the Crown. That it wasfelt to be exces-
sive I have shown by the action of the Govern-
ment. That it was known to he excessive, I need
only prove by appealing to the experience of
any man who was in this House when the claim
was brought up in 1874, Even Myr. Mac-
donald’s best friends never thought of ask-
ing more than £6,000. The Cabinet, at
that time, after full consideration of the
matter, decided that they could not go beyond
£5,000, the amount advocated by the present
Minister for Works (Mr. Miles). Mr, Griffith,
who was then a prominent member on the
Government side of the House, admitted that
the extent of damages suffered by Mr. Macdonald
amounted to nothing like the £17,000 that had
been granted by the jury. Now, there isanother
reason why we should look with the same reserve
on this verdict given in 1879. The claim was
advocated by Mr. Macdonald in a particular
way. He could not get the money he wanted
from the Government, or from either side of
the House, on the verdict of 1869; so he
became a politician, and worked every possible
means in his power for the purpose of inducing
hon. members on both sides of the House to
grant his claim. In one way or another, all the
time that was lost—the ten years which elapsed
between 1869 and 1879—was due entirely to Mr.
Macdonald. He chose to tread the miry ways

of political recalcitrancy in order to further
the success of his claim. He lost that time,
and it served him in two ways: first, he
got the appeal to the court at Rnckhamp-
ton the second time; and, in the next
place, the witnesses on whont the (foverminent
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could depend for the rebuttal of his case had
gone, and they were not in a position to put the
case as it might have been put had it been tried
earlier. Anyone who remembers the bad season
of 1869 will see at once that compensation to the
extent of £20,000 for a newly formed station that
held 20,000 sheep at that time must have been
preposterously excessive. The whole station at
that time could have been bhought for about
a third part of that sum. I know a station
in the Maranoa district which was sold
at that time for 6s. 8d. a head; but Mr.
Macdonald was actually awarded damaﬂes at
the rate of £1 a head for all the stock on his
station, although he had the liberty of - taking
off every head of stock, and all the improve-
ments. The fault, then, lay entirely with Mr.
Macdonald, and, thergforu, he has no claim
to our sympathy on the ground of thig being a
long-standing elaim that ought to be Ll.d_msted
I say the peculiarity of this case makes it one
which should have been dealt with by this
House. Hach successive Government has always
felt that a verdict obtained as these verdicts
were could not possibly be just, and that it
was obviously the constitutional duty of the
Grovernment, at all events, to ask the opinion of
the House before they granted any such money
to Mr. Macdonald. I need not say that, had
Mr., Macdonald been a man who had not com-
mitted himselfin polities in the extraordinary way
he did--had he heen on the other side—I have
not the slightest doubt that his claim would have
remained unpaid, so far as the present Govern-
ment are concerned. I speak without the
slightest particle of political animosity. I was a
member of the Government when the committee
sat on the claim.  As a member of that Govern-
ment 1 opposed the payment of anything like
£5,000, because I thought, from a most care-
ful investigation of the subject, that £1,000
would have been perfectly sufficient. I
opposed it then, and I opposed it at every
subsequent stage ; so that my opposition can-
not be said to arise from any political action
taken by Mr. Macdonald since. Now, an inter-
jection has been made by the Premier that in
1877, when the Government took the extraordi-
nary action of refusing to put on the Hstimates
the amount of his clain, they, at the same time,
paid him all the costs of his action against the
Governinent—£2,166 ; and that then they did it
without asking the sanction of Parliament. From
my examnination of the books, 1 find that it was
put on the Supplementary Estimates. The de-
bates at that time were reported to a very limited
extent, and each vote was not given in detail, so
T cannot find whether that vote was actually
submitted for the approval of the House ; but it
was printed in the Supplementary Estmlateu
No. 3, of that year. In the discussion on it, Sir
Arthur Palmér (then Mr. Palmer) explessed
himself to the following effect :—

“IIe (Mr. Palmer) had papers in his possession in Mr.
AMacdonald’'s own writing which showed that at the
time that he brought the action he knew very well that
the 4.0 00 Immnbs hiad been destroyed hy his own superin-
tendent to save their mothers’ lives. e would show
those papers to the Atlorney-General, if that gentleman
liked to see them. And yet the Govermment allowed
judgment to go almost by default, and were now going
to pay £2.165 17s. 7. If Mr. Macdonald had not been a
supporter of the Government, would he ever have got
even the odd sevenpence >’

Now, that was not only urged by Sir Arthur
Palmer, then a member of the Opposition, but in
almost as terse language by the then Treasurer,
Mr. Hemmant. K

The PREMIER: Mr. Hemmant was not
Colonial Treasurer at that time.

The Hox. Sirk T. McILWRAITH : At any
rate, when the claint was before the Flonse in a




1318 Supply.

previous year, Mr. Hemmant distinguished him-
self by laughingly admitting that it was the
warbling of Mr. Macdonald that led to the
money being placed on the Estimates. That
was apparent to every one in the House at the
time, and could not be denied. It may be said
that if there is a claim against the Government
registered in the Supreme Court they ought to
pay the same as a private individual ; but I say
that this is taken out of the category of those
claims. It was a claim that had been so much
contested—the House itself knowing so much
more than the particulars put before any court,
and the Government having repeatedly put it on
the Estimates and asked for a decision of the
House—that to deal with it constitutionally
it ought to have been submitted to the
House before being paid by the (Government.
But in paying this money the Govermment
did not even take the precaution they did in
1877, when they paid the costs, amounting to
£2,166. That sum was put on the Supplementary
Estimates, and submitted to Parliament; but
here no one would have known that it appeared
in Schedule D, of the amounts that would be
submitted to Parliament, unless they had
got that information from the Treasury, or
until the Auditor-General’s report came out.
When the Auditor-General’s report came out,
though I was aware of the fact that it had been
paid before, and that it was in the schedule,
still T am quite sure that it was not known
to many hon., members. And that it ought
to have been submitted to this House is cer-
tainly the opinion of the Auditor-General, as
given in his report. In enumerating the sums
paid under special appropriations, that officer
says—and I may say that they are fearfully
excessive compared with those paid by the pre-
vious Government—he says:i—

“Inaddition tothe unauthorised expenditure referred
to in paragraph 4, the tollowing swns, in excess of those
included in Sclhiedule D to the Estimates-in-Chief, have
been paid by order of the Executive.”

One of these is the amount paid to Mr.
Macdonald ; and the Auditor-General explains
in a foot-note that it was paid ‘““under Act 20
Vie.,, No. 15 (now repealed).” That was re-
pealed in 1866, and how the Government had
authority, under an Act repealed eighteen
years ago, to pay a sum of that kind, I cannot
understand. I say, sir, without the slightest
fear of my argument being overturned, that
this amount has been paid to Mr. Macdonald
wrongly, that it has been paid out of the money
of the taxpayers of the colony, when that money
ought to have remained in the Treasury, and
that the money would never have been paid
except for the political services rendered by Mr.
Macdonald to his party. And it is time the
country understood how the money entrusted to
the Government is being wasted in paying for
the political services of men who have aided
their party. I will now come to another case,
sir, which I think will be clearly seen to be one
of ministerial maladministration, and, I may say,
of ministerial corruption. I refer tothe way in
which the claim of Messrs. Annear and
Company has been settled by the present
Government. This claim was made by the
contractors for two sections of the Mary-
borough and Gympie Railway. The same
parties were contractors for both sections. They
finished the fivst, rendered their final aceount, got
the final certificate, and gave the Government a
clear acquittance for that section. The second
section had not got that stage when certain
matters were disputed. At last, in November,
1882, they rendered their claim to the Govern-
ment for the amount of £26,380 9s, 6d. Now,
thix included a large number of claims in regard
to No, 1 section, which had heen finally sottled ;
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the balance being claims on No. 2 seetion, which
had not been finally settled. That claim was
duly forwarded to the Chief Engineer’s office fou
the report of the engineers who had carried on
the works for which Annear and Company had
been the contractors. I may say that this claim,
put in by Annear and Company first in Novem-
ber, 1882, had been resisted by the Government
up to the 2nd January, 1884, when it was urged
again by a letter of that date to the Hon. W.
Miles, Minister for Works, I will read that
letter :—

“We have the honour to address you with refereunce
to the action brought by ws against the Commissioner
for Railw. in eonnection with our claimns against him
in conneection with the contracts for the 1st and 2nd
scetions of the Maryborongh and Gympie Raitway.

“We enclosc you a copy of the statement of elaim
in that action, and of the particulars of our ¢lain, which
have not been allowed by the IEngineer-in-Chief, aud to
which we conceive ourselves justly entitled. In this
opinion we are strongly fortitied Ty yprofessional
engineering opinion, the particulars of which we will
he happy to lay before vou without reserve should you
think proper to act npon the suggestion we now propose
to make.

“The action came hefore the Supreme Court in
Brisbane upon demurrer to our statement ot claim,
when it was decided that we conld not go hehind the
decision of Mr, Stanley nor question his action legally.

“ Againat this decision we have obtained leave to
appeal. and we have complied with the conditious as
to giving security for costs,

“ Before, however, initiating the heavy expense that
will have to be incurred by both sides in London,
shonld the appeal procecd, we desire to suggest to you
the desirability of having an investigation into our
claims ; and should you do so, and {ind that you ean
recommend the payment to us of a reasonable sum in
settlewent of our ¢laim, we will be prepared to mect
favourably any action that you may think it desirahle
to take thercupon.

“ By our stutement of claitn you will perceive that
we charge certain officers of the Chiet Engineer’s
Departinent with gross and wilful defanit in the
discharge of their duty. We think it is only necessary
to eall your attention to the absurd and rurinous
loss of time and money caused by the sinking of the
cylinder of the Antigua Bridge to a depth of from
8 feet to 19 feect 6 inches in solid green diorite rock,
which lLiad to be done by divers with chisels, wader the
arbitrary requirements of the Chief lingineer’s Depart-
ment—a work which we do not hesitate to say has heen
condeinned s utterly useless by every competent
engineer who has considered the inatter-—to show you
that there is & strong pidina focie case for inyuiry.,
This work was imposed on us as an extra after the
contract was undertaken, and it has caused us a loss of
several thousands in the prosccution of the work itself,
and in the delay in completion of the whole contract
and extramaintenance. Amongstotheritems we would
especially refer to the condemnation of some splendic
grave! ballast easily oh ainable, and our being compelled
1o take other bhallast, which cost us more at the quarry
than we were allowed tor it by the schedule rates.

“We will be very glad indeed to avoid the delay and

anxiety of an appeal to the Privy Councll, and feel surc
that if you will take the inatter in hand and investigate
it thoroughly youn will find yourself justified in making
such an arrangement for the liquidation of our eluims
as we can with justice to ourselves accept.”
This letter, it will be seen, at once gives us to
understand that there have been some verbal
negotiations with the (vovernmment with respect
to the claim. But I want to point out especially
this portion of theletter :—

“ By owr statement of claim yon will perceive that
we charge cortain officers of the C(hief Fugineer’s
Department with gross and wiitul defanlt in the
discharge of their duty. We think it is only necessary
to call your attention to the absurd and ruinous
loss of time and money caused by the sinking of the
cylinder of the Antigna Bridge to a depth of from
8 feet 10 19 feet 6 inehes in solid green diorite rock.”

That is the principal reason given in this letter
why a reconsideration of their claim should be
made. As a matter of fact—as is admitted by
the contractors afterwards—every penny that
they had spent on that had been actually certified
for and paid by the engineer. In the award of
Mr, Wade they actually got nething, but that is
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a moot point to consider, and the only reason
en by them was a reason that really did not
exist, for these claims had been acknowledged
and }hbld for by the Government. Whether Mr.
Stanler, the IBugineer-in-Chief, or whoeser was
respousible, had committed an error, as aun
engineer, in sinking those cylinders so deep as
they actually were sunk, is a matter altogether
outside the question. The question iy, to what
amount were the contractors actually entitled
under their contract for the work done? And
that work was paid for and acknowledged
afterwards by the contractors to have been
paid for. Then comes from the Government
a reply to that letter. It is signed, <.
Curmow, Acting Commissioner for Railways,”
is dated, ** Brisbane, 26th January, 1884,” and
reads as follows :—
“Cownnissioner for Railways’ Ollice,
Brishuue, 26th January,

18814,

“GRNTLEMEN,—T am desired to acknowledge receipt
of your letter of the 2ud instant re your ¢laim in connce-
tion with your contracts for the lst and 2nd sections of
the Maryborough and Gyvmpie Railway, and, withont
prajudice to any future action which may he taken in
the matter. to ask if you are willing to have the cuse
remitted to arbitration ; and if so, that you will be good
cnougly to nans an arbitrator who would aet on your
hehaldf, with one to be appointed by the Governmeunt,
provided it is approved to cousider your claiins in the
manner suggested.

*“Awaiting the favour of your reply,

“I have, ete.,
“ 1. Corxow,

“ Acting Comvmissioner for Railwrs
¢ Mesars. Johm T Anncar und Company, Brisbane.”
I have a word to say with regard to the action
taken by the Government here. Why the
Government came to the conclusion to submit
the matter to arbitration T do not know, for the
contract is very clear as to the ])()sltl()n which
the Government holds in a contract of this kind.
The contract was settled by Mr Griffith, I do
not know whether it wasg his work as a lawyer
outside the departinent, or his work while acting
as Minister for Works,

The PREMIER : While Attorney-General,
and Acting Minister for Works.

The Hox. Sir T, McILWRAITH : I do not
know whether it was done by the present
Premier in his capacity as Minister for Works,
or in his capacity as a lawyer consulted by the
department, but I think I am right in saying
that the contract was settled by him, and
especially this clause in which he takes great
pride :—

“Should any dispute arize as to the proper inter-
pretation of the specifications, or as to what shall he
consideres carrying on the work in a proper and work-
manlike manner, or as to the quality of the work
or materials wed. or as to the expenses of any
additional work, or deduction from that specified,
or alteration which may be ore or
less  expeusive than the work speeified, or as to
any pavinents or clajims in respect of the work or
as to the proper maintenance ot the works. or as to
any other claim, matter. or thing conneeted with oy in
any way arising out of this contract directly or in-
directly. whether professional or otherwise, the same
shali he referred to the Chief I'n.ineer, whose decision
shall he final and binding on all parties. anything in luw
or equity to the contrary notwithstanding. And no
action or suit shall be hrought by the contractor against
the Uommnissioner nntil the matters in dispute between
themn shall have heen xo referred to ainl decided by the
(hief Eungineer, and then only for such siun as he shall
awinrd in respeet thereof.  And the Commnissioner shall
not in any case be labhie to pay any swn by way of
damages or otherwise howsoever, to the coutractor, in
respecr of any matter in ¢ ute. nutil the amownt
thereof sh:ll hive been assessed and amnended by the
Chief Ingheer.”’

The policy of a clause of that sort in a contract
is a matter of opinion. The theory of the
(overnment in making contracts of that kind is
that the contractor looks pfter his own interests,
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that the district engineer looks after the Govern-
ment’s interests, and that if there is a dispute it
should be referred to the Chief Kngineer as final
umpire. The immediate effect of a clause of that
kind is that the Government pays actually in
cash for its being in the contract; for when the
contractor binds himself hand-and-foot to such
a condition he adds on to his price accordingly.
Hvery contractor who tenders under this clause
knows the condition under which he tenders,
and charges accordingly. The contractors—
Annear and Company—knew the conditions
under which they took up the contract, and
there ought to have been some grave rea-
son—-such as corruption on the part of the
Chief Engineer—before the Goverument should
have been led to depart from the condition, for
this reason : that it would give a contractor an
advantage over every other man who tendered
for a work., If, for instance, the Government
called for tenders for a contract of this sort, and
quietly intimated to any contractor that if any
difficulty arose they would take it into considera-
tion, he would be prepaved to tender at a much
lower price than another man to whom that
favour had not been shown, Whatever be the
policy of the clause, it yives a certain amount of
assurance that the work shall be well done, and the
responsibility of deciding upon that is left with
the Kngineer-in-Chief, behind whose back the
contractors cannot go. But without any cause
shown in this correspondence the Government
depart from that, and suggest to the con-
tractors that the matters in dispute should be
submitted to arbitration. What were those
matters in dispate? Accounts amounting to
nearly £26,000 were handed in by the contractors;
and would it be believed—it is not contradicted
by the Minister for Works, or anyone—that the
Engineer actually states that ne: wly £18,000 of
that claim bad never in any shape or form been
submitted to him foradjudication? The Govern-
nment had never been asked to pay this amount.
The account was made out by the contractors,
submitted to the Govermment, and an wnpire
appointed to sit upon it, before £18,000 of what
was claimed had ever been submitted to the
Engineer-in-Chief at all.  Mr. Stanley’s letter of
the 2nd May shows this very clearly. ©On that
date the lngineer-in-Chief made this remon-
strance to the Commissionerfor Railways :
SO EMO. TO THE COMMISSION ER FOR RAILWATYS, BRISBANE.

“ Referring to your mema of the 28th nltimo, in which
you advise me of M V. B, Wade's appointment as
*Chief Bugineor. \Lu\bomuwh Railway, for the purpose
of inquiring into and “deciding disputes and differences,
ete.. hetween contractors and Cowmissioner,” and to
your B.C. memo. of yesterday, requesting e to furnish
certain documents, ete., inrespect to Messrs. Annear and
Company's claim for Vir. Wade's information, [ have the
honour to draw your attention to the fact that the
vu‘qtu part of this elaim, amounting to £17,415 5s., as
ateinent enclosed, was never subinitted to e in
wpaecity as Chiet Engineer, nor to Mr. Smith as
\1‘111\« Chiet Engineer, to adjudicate upon, and I there-
fore submit. for your conxulemmon whether such por-
tion of the elaim can be regarded as coming under the

category of ‘disputes between the contractors and the
Comnuissioner.

Now, sir, to come back to the action of the
(Government. This proposal—that the contrac-
tors should appoint arbitrators—was made on
the 29th January, and Annear and Company an-
swered on the 30th, accepting the proposal, and
appointing as arbitrator on their behalf Mr. John
Sinclair, of Brisbane. Why that course was not
agreed to—a course suggested by the (overn-
ment, and acquiesced in by the contractors—is
not at all apparent on the face of the corres-
pondence, because the very next document to
the letter annonneing the acquiesence of Annear
and Company is a telegram to the Premier of
New South Wales signed ““8. W. Griffith.”
You will notice, Mr, Speaker, that after this
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the Premier, Mr. Griffith, stepped in and took
the matter entirely out of the hands of the
Minister for Works., With the exception of one
little scrap signed ““ W.M.” in the corner, he
never appears on the scene again to the end of
the chapter. lverything is signed by the Pre-
mier. This is the telegram :—

“ TELEGRAM ADDRESSED TO T1TE HON, A. STUART, PREMIER,
SYDNEY.
“RBrishane, 12th March, 1884,

“There is a dispute betwen railway contractors
and Government engineers with respeet to a railway
contract here Dispute should be finally decided by the
Chief Engineer but for various reasons his services are
not available.”

I submit, sir, that as Mr. Henry C. Stanley
was in the bloom of health, and anxious
and willing to do his duty, and had in fact
constantly, by letter and otherwise, intimated
to the Government his desire to do his duty
in the matter—this is telling a quiet little fib
to the Premier of the adjoining colony. It
says that for various reasons the services of Mr.
Stanley are not available. But, sir, not only
were his services available, but the services of
Mr. Smith were also available—legally available.
The telegram goes on to say—

“You would confer a favour on this Government if
you could spare an engineer of high standing from your
Railway Department to act as chief engineer to decide
this dispute Matter would probably take two or three
weeks to dispose of I will leave remuneration to he
decided by you.

“ 8. W, GrirmTH.”

Then there is a telegram from Mr. Stuart, dated
March 21st—nine days afterwards—placing the
services of Mr. Wade at the disposal of the
Governinent. Then comes a copy of the ‘“‘Minute
of the Proceedings” of the lxecutive Council on
21st May, two months afterwards. What had
been going on in the meantime there is nothing
in writing to show. The Executive minute is as
follows —

“RAILWAYS: APPOINTMENT OF Mg. W, B. Wang, Brc.

“His Iixcellency the Governor, at the instance of the

Honourable the Seeretary for Public Works and Blines,
proposes to the Council that

W. B. Wabw,

Chief Assistant Engineer, Railway Department. Sydney,
be temporarily appointed Chief IFngineer, Maryhorough
Railway, for the purpose of inguiring into and deeiding
all disputes and ditferences hetween Messrs. J. T.
Annear and Company, the contractors for the construe-
tion of the Maryborough Railway,and the Acting Coin-
missioner for Railways.

“The Counecil advise as recommended.

“ Approved.—(Signed) A. MusgravE—21-3-84.”

Then comes some correspondence with Mr,
‘Wade which need not be quoted by me. The
minute I have just read is a little out of place,
because it is dated the 21st May, and Mr. Wade
was evidently in Brisbane at the time. I o not
know whether the date is a mistake or not, but
I find that on the 29th April Mr. Curnow advises
Mr. Wade to the following effect :—

“8ir,—1 have the honour to inform youw that Iis
Execellency the Governor, with the advice of the Bxecu-
tive Couneil, has been pleased to appoint you tempo-
rarily to the position of Chief Engineer, Maryborough
Railway, for the purpose of inquiring into and deciding
all disputes and differences between Messrs. J. T. Annear
and Company, the contractors for the construetion of
the Maryborough Railway, and tlie Comiuissioner for
Railways.

“I now beg to hand you all papers in connection with
this ease, and toask if you will be good enough to favonr
me with your report al your convenience.”

The PREMIER : It must be a mistake.
The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH : At all

vents, there is no point upon that. T only read
he appeintment to show the character of the
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proceedings., Then we have a memo. from Mr.
Curnow as follows :—

“ Cominissioner for Railwa;

“* Brisbune,

Office,

th April, 1884
“AMEMO,

s desired Dy youn in this offies on 26th instant. I
now enclose, for record in your oftfice, copy of Executive
Minute re the temporary appointment of Mr. W. B.
Wade as Chief Engineer, Maryborough Raijlway, for the
purpose of inquiring into and deciding disputes and
differences, ete., hetween contractors and commis-
sioners.

“I 1ay here state, in confirmation of what I told
you on Saturday, tlie 26th instant, that, although un-
necessary eorrespor d nee has been avoided, your de-
partment, represeuted hy Mr. Annett, has been dnly
advised and consulted with e the above matter.

“The Chief Ingineey, 8.1., Brisbane.

“ I W. Curxow,
“ Aeting Commissioner for Railways.

“Mr. Wade, I understand, lett Sydney on Saturday
last, —TI.C.*»

This letter is quite unintelligible to me. It is
addressed to ““The Chief Fngineer, S.1., Bris-
bane,” and is dated April 28th, on which day Mur.
Curnow advised the Chief lingineer that M.
Wade had Leen appointed ; and in reply Mr.
Stanley writes this memo., part of which I have
already read :—

“ Department of Public Works,
“ Railway Branch, Chief Engineer’s Office,
“ Brisbane, 2nd May, 1834,

“1Ilemo to the Commissioner for Railways, Brishane.

“ Reterring to yourinemo. of the 28th ultiwo, in which
vou advise me of Mr. W. B. Wade’s appointment as
¢Chief Engineer, Maryborough Railway, for thie purpose
of inquiring into and deciding disputes and differences,
ete., between contractors and Comnissioner” and to
your B.C. memo. of yesterday, requesting me to furnish
certain docwmnents, ete., in respect to Messrs, Annear
and Co.’s claim, for Mr, Wade's information, I have the
honour to draw your attention to the fact that the
greater part of this claim, amounting to £17415 5=, ay
per statement enclosed, was never submitted ton e in
my capacity as Chief Fngineer, nor to Mr. Smith as
Aecting Chief Fngineer, to adjudicate upon. and I there-
fore submit, for your consideration, whether such por-
tion of the claim can he regarded as coming under the
category of ‘disputes between the contractors and the
Colnmissioner.’

It will he observed that although Messrs. Annear
and Company's claim, when first submitted, was
formally referred to the Acting Chief Iingineer, Mr.
J. T. Smith, for report, e was not called upon to decide
the questions in terms of the 39th eclause of the
general conditions, I presume, on account of the con-
tractors objecting to his acting in the capacity of Chief
Ingineer in deciding matters connected with the works
upon wlich he was engaged as District Ingineer, and
tuat, as pointed out by Mr. Smith, some of the items
comprised in the clain had already been finally decided
by myself.

“With respect to the claims on No. 1 section. as to

which Mr. Wade asks for information. I think it would
he very desirable that his attention should be officially
drawn to the fact that the tinal ckrtificate in this case
was signed by me, the vouchers for balance duc thereon
signed by the contractors, and the money actually paid
before any protest was made by them.”
Then here we have a memorandum that appears
to have been sent from the Commissioner for
Railways to himself. The printing of the
papers 1s very bad, because this inemo. is headed
“Memorandum to Acting Commissioner for
Railways,” and is signed “F. C., Acting Com-
missioner for Railways,” and we cannot suppose
that Mr. Curnow would send a memorandum to
himself. Tt is evidently a memo. sent by Mr,
Wade asking for certain information. It is dated
¢¢ Brizbane, 30th April,” and says :—

“Will you be good enough to furnish me with the
following deewminents or copies thereof.”

After enumerating the documents it goes on to
sy i—

“T proposs to get to Maryhorough on Friday next to
satisfy myself about the gravel ballast question, and
should like to have someonc with me who could point
out the localities. I presumne the contractors, or one
of them, will aeccompuny me, and there should, I
think, be someone on the part of the Government,
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“I :think most of this information should be in the
Chief Engineer’s Oflice,

“Will the Chief Eugineer, therefore, please prodnce

papers and arrange for someone to accompany Mr. Wade
over the Maryhorough line : perhaps Mr. Depree, who [
understand is in the district, would do.”
Mr. Wade, who is no doubt a sensible man, and
a man of great experience, writes to the Govern-
ment actually %ugqeatuw to them what their
duty is. He says, in effect :—*“ [ am called upon
to decide certain matters ; surely you are going
to send somebody with me who knows the
details—somebody who has been superintending
the work, and knows the facts of the case, and
what is actually in dispute between the con-
tractors and the Government.” He asked that
they should send an engineer with him who
was acquainted with the work. Ide had been
evidently ill-advised, because it appears from the
rest of the correspondence that Mr. Depree was
only on the works for a Hmited period, and
would not have been the fittest man to have
sent. But, sir, the Government actually satisfied
their consciences by sending the contractors
with Mr. Wade, and nobody to represent the
Government. Of all the disgraceful proceed-
ings in connection with this very questionable
matter, that is certainly the worst. In reply to
the requisition from Mr. Wade for particulars
as to the claim, and what he had to see into, he
writes on the 1st of May the following letter,
part of which I have just read :—

“Referring to memorandwim addressed to you hy Mr.
W. B. Wade, requesting to be furnished with certain
information connected with Messrs. Annear and Com-
pany’s claim, and stating his intention of 1)10080di11"‘ to
Maryborough to-morrow, for the purpose of satisfying
himself re gravel ballast,—

* I have the hononr to advise youthat I will instruct
AMr. Depree, who is at present in Maryhorough, to
accompany Mr, Wade over the Jine; but as his connec-
tion with the construction had ceased before the ques-
tion of the gravel hallast arose, I fear he will he unable
to point out the localities, or give evidence on that
guestion.

“XMr. Thornloe Smith, who I understand is at
present absent from the colony, is the only oflicer that
can give reliuble information upon most of the queatiom
referred to by Mr. Wade, as he was District Iingineer
during the greater part of the timne the works were in
progress.

“The permanent-way inspectors are now severed
from this departient, nanely—P. Minehan, having been
transferred to Northern division, and H. Jackson, dis-
missed.

“As it is important in the interests of the Govern-
ment that the several oflicers connected with the works
at the time of construction shiould he present to give
evidence bhefore Mr. Wade on the different matters
involved in Mes Annear and Company’sclaim, I would
suggest the expediency of postponing the inguiry until
they can be hrought here for the purpose.”

Will any sensible man on reading that not see
at once that it was the duty of the Government
at once to postpone the consideration of the
matter? Here is a claim actually brought for-
ward by Aunear and Company, after they had

and put in something like eighteen months after
the contract was finished. A term of eighteen
months had expired, during which they had
plenty of time to arrange about it; and they
actually took the opportunity when the only
men who could give evidence on behalf of the
Government were abroad, and they hurried over
the matter before the Government had the
slightest opportunity of having their say in
the matter. In reply to that, here is a letter
which evidently settles the thing so far as the
Government are concerned, to get a decision
from Mr. Wade. It did not matter whether
Mr. Thornloe Smith or anybody representing
the Government was there or not :—

“In reply to memorandum of May Ist., from the
Chiet Engineer. I beg to state that it i3 quite impossible
for me to await the arrival of Mr. T, Smith, as be is, T
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believe, in Melbourne at present ; but if Mr. Depree ean
meet me al Marvborough it is possible he 1nay he able
te verify or otherwise the stateiuents of contractors as
to the locality of the gravel in question, and in other
questions ut e: I believe the papers I have usked for
will throw snfiicient light on the matter to enable me
to judge of the yuestions, for I find there are very few
which depend ou direct verbal evidence. I shall be
very mueh obliged if the papers in question can be fur-
nished to me at once”

The Government had plenty of means of fixing
such a time as would be suitable to have their
evidence put before Mr. Wade; but they
neglected those opportunities. There was not
the slightest endeavour made to find Mr, Smith,
to hur ry him up, or to postpone the inquiry
until the time when his evidence could be taken.
On the 8th May, Mr. Stanley wrote a very kill-
ing letter—a letter which is well worthy of the
perusal of the House—on the claims actually
put forward.  But I do not want to take up the
time of the House, so I will assume that some of
the correspondence, at any rate, has been read
by hon. members. T will refer to the last para-
graph in that letter of the Sth of May, by Mr.
Stanley :—

“Having heard that Mr. J, Thornloe Smith is expected
to return 10 Brishane to-day, I would suggest the desira-
bility of that gentleman’s ev idence being taken by My,
Wade, especially in connection with the b,).llm.t yuestion,
hefore the inguiry is closed.”

Then there is a memorandum from Mr, J. T.
Smith with regard to claims. The evidence
was conelnded ; and 3r. Wade went back from
Maryborough to Brishane before Mr. Smith saw
him. " 1 believe myself that he did see him ; but
there is no evidence whatever of thut in the
documents I am quoting from now ; and it is
very plain that any interview he had with him
could not have been of the value that it would
have been if they had been on the works where
the engineer could actually point out to the
arbitrator what he had done and bis reasons for
having done so. Infact, thereport thatisgivenby
Mr. Smithand Mr. Depl ee cannot well be supposed
to have met the eyes of Mr. Wade at all, because
the report of Mr. Depree, to which that of Mr.
Smith is an addendwm, is put in the same page,
and no doubt was made on the same date. At
all events, the date of the report of Mr. Depree
and Mr. Smith is given here as the 21st May,
whereas Mr. Wade actually forwarded his
report and his decision on the disputes between
the contractors and the Government, to Bris-
bane, on the 16th May, 1884, He had actually
written his report and was on his way back when
those two engineers, two most important men
to give evidence, actually reported on the claim
]mt forward, and gave weighty arguments
against some of the decisions come to by Mr.
Wade, and also gave information that ought de-
cidedly to have been in his possession. Claim
No. 9 was a very important cla,lm, and was
decided, T think wrongly, by Mr. Wade, in
favour of the contractors. 'This is what Mr.
Smith says :—

« In July, 188", the contractors claimed that the first
section of the line was ready for their term of main-
tenance to commence, and I was instructed to go to
Maryborongh and make an official exumination for the
purpese of determnining whether that was the case or
not. Theresult of that examination is contained in my
report on the subject. 1t was very deficient in many
respects.

“ It was not until October following this report that
T was instructed to take charge of the works; this was
chiefly owing to the discovery of one of the most dis-
graceful and dangerous frauds which have ever been
practised npon the Govi rnment by railway contractors,
and tor which these contractors w ex eundoubtedly respon-
sible. I mean the * s&orl piles” investigation. This
disclosed such a shameful state of thingsin connection
with the contract that the department required to be
rigidly eareful in the examination of wnd passing the work
of these el




1322 Supply.

“The line was not in a condition to take over on the
day of opening the line. Augwst §th, 1ss1; infend, on
September 20k, 181 1 went over No, 1 seetion with Alr,
Oldham to point out to him several hanks which were
left in their ovigintl rough state,  Oldhant took notes
of these, und «ffeecasds sent men to inake them
cowmplete.

“The c¢orrespondencs will show on what particular
day maintenance was determined to commence.”

Now, in spite of that clear and sucsinet evidence
upon this particular elaim—claim 9—>Mr. Wade
has given a decision against the (fovernment,
because the (zovernment managed to yet in the
evidence of the engincer of the line actually
seven days after Mr. Wade had written his
judgment on the whole matter in Sydney.
There are some other points in this interest-
ing case, and the first is a letter from M.
Wade three days before Lis decision was given.
He writes to the Acting Commissioner for “Radl-
ways i—

*Si—I have the honour to acknowladge the receipt
of rourletter of April 29iL, 188E informing me that I
had bean temporarily appointed to the position of
Clief Fngineer on the above line for the jpurepose of
inguiring into and deciding all disputs ete.. hetween
the contractors and the Conanissior tor Railwags,
I have now had an opportunity of hearing statcnments
on hoth sides. and have had aees<s to @ vumber of
papers  on the subjeet frony the olice of the Chief
Engineor, and 1 trust that 1 Lave been able to muke
1t thoroughly familiar with the several mattess in
ute. I find that the ease has been to a certain
degree dealt with by the Supreme Conrt on the grounds
of thu geueral conditions of ecoutract, and that
an award respeeting No. ontract hias been wmade
by the Chi cineer stric within  the lines
of the specification, but I wanlerstand, from the verhal
instruetions given to me by the omonrable the Minis-
ter for Works, that T amn asked to jmt these teeh-
nical decisions entirely on one side, and 1o examine the
question at is=ue with a view of giving a just and equit-
able award of the mmounts (if any - due to the
contractors. I wish to make my=1f ¢lear npon 1his
point. as if T had to give an opinion from the suue
standpoint as the Chief Euginesr —that strietly
within the lm(,x of the specilications ny deeision would
differ on st 1 points from that L now forward to yon.

“1n dueulmj* this matter I have taken for my guid-

ance the sehiedule of pr if'LS. and the hroad principle of
schedule contracts, ete.”
The rest of the letter is not important. Here is
the history, to smmmarise it in a fow words, I
may say, however, before I finish this part of
it, that Mr. Wade has given an award—that it
amounts to £5,541 2s.; and is comprised in these
items :—

CoNtracr No, 1. £ s dl
Item 7.—Additional rebate on  hire of
engine, ete.... . 522 810
Ttem 9.—Additional sum for maintenance 1312 1o 0
CoNreacr No, 2.
Ttem 101.—Additional rebate on hire of
enging, ete. ... 1.050 13 2
Ttemn 11.—Additional swin tor mlmtcn,mo\ 1,135 0 0
Item 1+ —Payment for loss owing to the
gravel ballast not huing allowed
to be used e . 500 0 0
Item 18,—Ung une head . 830 0 0
Itemn 22 —Payment ot loss of time e sed
by engine heing nsed by Ifulwny
Depaltml,nf . . 150 10 0

Now Mr. Wade says tlnt were he to give his
decision strictly within the lines of the speci-
fication, it would differ from this in any
particulars,  He would not have given, for
mstance, two items there — £1,312 10 and
£1,155,  Mr. Wade had not the slightest right
or justice to go away from the specitication. The
specification, as I stated before, is a bargain
between the contractor and the Govermnent.
If it isa hard bargain, it is no reason, because the
contractor does not like it after he has made it,
that they should gn outside the strict justice of
the case. It is not only unjust to the Gov-
ernment to go outside the specification, but
it s unjust to every contractor who tendered
at the same time, If, for instance, the
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contractors had been informed that if the
Government took their line before it was

completed they would not have to pay for
maintenance for the six mwonths, or that the
maintenance they would have to pay for would
ro5 excesd six months after the thne the
Government used the line, they could frame
their contract accordingly. It i« laid down that
maintenance of the contract is to commence
from the time that the line is csrtified for—that

iv, when it is completely finished by the
contractors. They have then to maintain it for

six months, and the Government reserve to
themselves the power of taking possession of the
line whenever it is safe to run their engines upon
it. That is a fair condition between the Govern-
ment and the contractor, provided it is under-
stood. The contractor reasons in this way : ‘I
am liable to fines if T donot finish theline within
a certain time, but T am liable, in addition to
the additional amount that it will cost me, to
work my railway and wake the portion left
after the (Government run their trains on it,
and after the time the maintenance commences.”
That might be a bad bargain, but the contractor
has agreed to it.  Yet, in the face of that, Mr.
Wade says that it is a very hard thing ; and, as
the contractor has done the work, he should be
paid for it.  But he was bound to do it by the
specification, which spacially says that he is not to
be paid for it.  Anyone can see that by reading
the clause to which [ have referred. I have no
doubt that it was upon this account espeemllv
that Mr. Wade was moved in his conscience
toask to be relieved fron giving a verdiet accord-
ing to the contract, and to be allowed to put
aside sueh technical matters as a specification.
Who would not like to make a railway without
a specification ?  Is there not a great difference
between making a railway with a specification,
and making one without a specification ? Why,
the specification represents the conditions on the
one side; and here we have the Minister for
Works deliberately telling a man, who is called
in as an arbitrator to decide how much the Gov-
ernwent are to pay—to throw all those conditions
aside, and go in for the general principles of fair
play. The clanse I have referred to, as carrying
out distinctly the arguments I have put hefore
the House, is clause o

“The contractor shall be bound to keep in good and
sullicient order and repair, and at all times open for the
passage of trains, the whole way and works executed
under this contraet, for the period of six calendar
wmonths from and atter the date when the works shall
have been [ully cowmpleted, and certified as complete
by the Chief Bugineer; butit is hereby provided that
tiie Govermment shall have full power to muke use of
the line of rails for public traflic so soon as the Chief
Fngineer shall certify the same to be in « tit condition
for sueh traflie,” ete.
The condition there is specially laid down that,
while the contractor has to pay for only six
months’ maintenance, it is to be from the time
when the works are fully completed, and is not
to include the time from which the Government
might necessarily have been compelled to take
possession of the line for ordinary traffic. That
s clearly laid down in the conditions. The
Government may find that it will save themselves
a considerable amount of loss to take possession of
the work as soon as the trains may be safely run
over it. The specification provides that any loss
the contractor may be at in working the railway
nnder those conditions—that is to say, when the
tratlic is rin over it—shall be borne by himself,
unless he can prove or show that it was not his
fault that the line was not open, which would be
a different matter altogether. But here, no such
claim is made : it is admitted that the line was
not finished at that time, and no claim is pnt
forward that it was bho farlt of the Government
that It was not so completed, 1 will go on to the
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next claims-—but I do not need to go into the
claims at all—I give that as an example. How-
ever, taking other two claims — for the
hire of the engine, and for the condemned
ballast — Mr. Wade’s decision here goes
directly in the teeth of the contract, and
in the teeth of fair play between the con-
tractors and the Government. Mr. Wade gives
this award, and the Government accept it.
The Government proceeded to accept it in an
extraordinary way too.  There is a part of M.
Smith’sletter that bears very much on the point
and very much on one of the claims that was
admitted by Mr. Wade, and which T may take
to illustrate the principle on which he awarded
the £5,541 to Messrs. Annear and Company.
The letter is addressed to the Chief Xingineer,
and is dated the 24th May, 1884. Mr. Smith
HAYS

I ohserve. with much surprise, from the letter
received from the contractors' solicitor, which you Lave
referred tome, and indeed, from an obscrvation made
to me by Mr. Wade. that the measuremment of per-
manent way made by me with Mr. Oldhain was not con-
sidered to he final by Mr. Oldham.

“If this be so, Mr. Oldhain must have shifted his
ground in anost unjustifinble manner, inasinuch as he
declared hefore yoi. on the gecasion of the claims beiug
originally submitted to you for legal adjustmesut and
decision, that he had nothing to say against the moen-
surement, that it was a fair measnreinent: upon which
Mr. Annear withdrew his demand for a re-measurement,
and said it was on account of Mr. Thorn thal the
demand had been made.

“T ean bring most amnple proof that this neasurement
was known to be tinal.”

Well, is it not a pitiable state of affairs? This
letter was written by Mr. Smith a week after
the decision of Mr. Wade was given in Sydney,
The letter continues :—

“I can bring most ample proof that this measure-
ment was known to be final; that the preparations made
by me to seenre its accuracy were assented to by M.
Olédham"—

He was the contractors’ engineer—

“And my assistants will testify that I called upon
Mr. Oldham to make his objections to my mode of
measurement on the spot, so that we might continue it
to the end of the section, to secure, as quickly as
possible, a final certificate.

*“Iregret that the gentlewman appointed by the Govern-
ment to fully investigute this and other most important
questions relating to this and the remaining sections
of the Maryborough and Gywipie Railway contract had
so little time to interrogate me upon the elains made
by Messrs. Annearand Company. I am nnable to under-
stand how a just estilnate could be arrived at without
my assistance, inasimuch as T was most intimately ac-
(quainted with every feature of the work performed by
the contractors, and was able, more so than anyone else
could possibly be, to enlighten that gentlewnan upon
certain decisions and intricicies of the case raised,
which could not be equitably entertained without ex-
planations, which it is due to this departiment that he
should have allowed himself the opportunity of examina-
tion; a conversation of a few moments. without any
immediate record, I submit, did not in any sense meet
the case, and in consequence of which this gentleman
may arvive, from insufiicient data, at decisionsaltogether
injurious to the true interests of the colony.”

Myr. Smith, therefore, was consulted by Mr. Wade
for a few moments only—very likely after his
report had been written—at all events, on the
very day that Mr. Wade left for Sycdney. On
receiving the award of Mr. Wade, the Acting
Commissioner for Railways wrote to Messrs.
J.T. Annear and Company as follows under
date 3rd July, 1884 :—

“ Referring to previous correspondence on the subject
of your clwims against this department in connection
with your contracts, Sections 1and 2, Maryborough
Railway, I am desired now to inform you that the
amount awarded by Mr. Wade, to whom the matter was
referred, is £5,541 2s., which sum I am authorised to pay
your firm on your intimating that you are prepared to
accept this amnount as a final settlement and giving me
u reecipt in full of all demands against this departuient
on aceonnt of the contraetors ahove veteyrod to,”
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Subsequently, on the Jth of the same month, Mr.
Curnow sent the following to Mlessrs. Annear
and Company :—

“ Referring to my letter to you of the 3rd instant, T
have now the houour to hand you copy of Mr. W, B.
Wade's awards on your claimg.”

Messrs. Annear and Company replied in these
terms:—
< Brishane, 7th July, 1831,

“81r,—We have the honour to acknowledyge receipt of
vour lettevs of 3rd and ath instant. together with the
copy of Mr. Wade's award in our clain, in comnection
witlt the Maryhorough and (ympie Railway contracts.

“Inraply, we beg to say we are preparcd to aceept the
amount wentioned in sattiement of the several items
adjudicated wpon by Mr. Wade, rescrving to ourselves
the right to claim thie benelit of the re-measurement of
ballast on No. 1 seetion.

“We submit that we are entitled to interest for the
last three years, on the amount which, even aeccording
to Mr. Wade, we shiould have beenr paid at the latest at
the opening of the line

< Qur expeitses in bringing this matter to an issue, up
to the present time, have bheen very heavy ; and ax the
result has proved that we were justificd in pressing
our elaim, we trust that the Government will take the
matter into their favourable consideration and make us
soine recompense for this enforeed ontlay.

¢ With regard to the guestionn of re-measurcinent of
the hallast on No. 1 section, wo are willing to join in a
re-measurenent as dirceted by Mr. Wade, or in the
alternative to accept the Government Lngineer's pro-
gress Wessurcnient as shown by esrtilicate No. 27,

“We ay call your atlention to wlat seems to have
becn an oversiglit of Mr. Wade's, in the matter of extra
haunlage of ballast on No. 2 section; our schedule price
for carringe of material is -kd. per ton per mile, whilst
Mr. Wade ouly allows 1d. per ton.

“We are, ete,,
(Signed) “Jonn Ty ANyeal axn o
This letter, which was duly rcceived by the
department, is addressed to the Comumissioner
for Railways. Then it is marked ‘‘Subitted
to the Hon. Secretary for Public Works,” and
here is the only instance where the Minister for
Works comes in, except as I mention=d at the
beginning of the correspondence. He writes on
the docmnent, ‘“Pay the amount awarded.—
W.M.” The amount awarded was £5,541 Zs.,
and, according to Mr. Curnow’s letter, it was to
be paid on the contractors agreeing to accept the
amount as a final settlement, and giving a
receipt in full of all demands against the depart-
ment. But Messrs. Aunear and Company,
instead of accepting those conditions, wrote back
urging a great many claims and not saying one
word about accepting the money as a final
settlement, “ W.M.,” however, says, ‘‘ Pay the
amount awarded.” The next part of the cor-
respondence is a receipt dated nine days after
that memorable document. It says

“ Received on the 16th day of July, 1884, the swm of
five thousand five hundred and forty-one pounds twn
shillings and pence sterling.

“(Signed) A.T. WiNsip,
#Teller, Q. N. Bank, Brishane.”
J. T. Annear and Company do not appear to have
given any receipt or acquittal in full, but the
teller of the Queensland National Bank sent
out a note to the effect that the bank had re-
ceived a sum of £5541 2s. That is the state
of the case as disclosed by the documents
brought before us. I have not brought politics
into this matter, but I have stated the plain
facts of a case in which I believe the Govern-
ment have been robbed. The Government
acted very indecently in hurrying on the award
of Mr. Wade as they did ; and I think, looking at
the election which was about to take place, and
the state of political affairs at Maryborough, we
may easily find a reason for that haste. Nothing
could be more grossly indecent ; and it was
evidently done with a desire to attain a political
object. Tt amounts to gross corruption on the
part of the Premier. 1 cannot accuse the
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Minister for Works of corruption, as he
appears to have had very little to do with the
matter. I will not characterise his conduct hy
any strong epithet, but T must say that the man
whocould read the letter of J. T Annearand Com-
pany in reply to the communication notifying the
award made by Mr. Wade, and say ‘ Pay the
amount awarded,” and then take from a bank
teller a receipt for the payment of the amount
without getting an acknowledgment that the
payment made was a final settlement, has not
been looking after the interest of the Govern-
ment in the way expected of a Minister for
Works. That £5,641 has, T believe, been paid to
Annear and Company unjustly. T have gone into
the claim made by the contractors, and I have
shown that Mr. Wade would never have awarded
the amount he did but for the instructions from
the Minister for Works to recede from the con-
tract. A great blow hax been struck at all
fair dealing with railway contractors in the
future. It remains now for a railway con-
tractor to find out whether we will appoint

an acting Ingineer-in-Chief, whenever the
Hngineer-in-Chief is not pliable enough. The

great bulk of the claiins — the manufactured
claims, as is plainly proved in evidence by Mr.
Wade in this case—were brushed aside, but many
of them were allowed, and wrongly allowed, to
override the contract. T think the Government
should let their friends know to whom they will
give the right of appeal, and what matters they
will be allowed to refer to arbitration. All the
most cunning machinery has been used to satisfy
the claims of Annear and Company in a nost
unjustifiable manner. I do not believe myself in
being too hard upon contractors. I believe a
fair specification should be made out, and not
one to which they should be bound hand-and-
foot ; but when a contract has been made under
certain terms there ought to be very strong
reasons given why it should be departed from.
I have heard or seen no strong reasons given by
the engineer why this particular contract should
be waived, nor why the Governor in Council,
acting under the authority of an assumed power,
should have imported a gentleman from Sydney
to adjudicate upon this case. They appointed
Mr. Wade, not as an arbitrator, but as acting
Engineer-in-Chief for the purpose of deciding
these claims, and it is a subterfuge that might
have been justified under particular circun-
stances and in a particular case; but there is not
the slightest cause shown in the correspondence
to justify the action of the Government in this
case of corruption, Just let hon. members look
to the measure of justice that has been meted
out to these gentlemen. Mr. Wade comes up
here, and the Government take every possible
precaution to keep the proper evidence from
being brought before him, and he is prevented
from giving a fair and just decision for want of
evidence. There is no reason why the evidence I
have pointed to should not have been obtained.
Every prudent man would take care, when
referring a case to arbitration, to be in a position
to advise the arbitrator properly in the matter of
evidence. We know that, when a jury goes out
to view a work that is in dispute between a con-
tractor and employer, and when the judge orders
a view of the works, they are not sent out in
charge of the contractor or employer. They ave
sent out in charge of the sheriff, who takes care
that no one-sided story is put upon the jury by
the interested parties ; but here the Government
appoint an acting Engineer-in-Chief and send
him up with the contractor to a place with
no representative of their own, and to decide
a case in which the contractors are personally
interested in getting as much money as they
can out of the country, and, in addition, every
possible precaution is taken to suppress evidence
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and to keep the Commissioner or Engineer-in-
Chief, or anyone else, from representing the
interests of the Government. Why, sir, I say the
facts disclose a distinct robbery of the Treasury,
and when we consider that the money has gone
where a good deal has gone before—to the
associated firm of Thorn and Company—it ought
to make us consider very seriously the position
that the Minister for Works has put himself into,
I do not blame him as being corrupt. I do not
believe he would do a dishonest action, but I
do blame him for acting injudiciously, and for
being incompetent to represent the true intervests
of the country ; and I blame him for not seeing
that his more wily colleague took the greatest
possible care to keep back evidence in favour
of the Government. And what has been the
sequence? Mr. J. Thornloe Smith has been dis-
missed, and the gentleman who condemned the
short-pile transaction has been dismissed—and
that on the representation of Mr. Annear.

Mr. ANNEAR : No.

The Hox. SR T. McILWRAITH : The hon.
gentleman says *“ No,” and T will take his word
forit that it was not so, but the gentleman who
superintended the construction of that work for
which Annear and Company were contractors, and
which is characterised by the engineer as having
disclosed such a disgraceful state of things, is
dismissed. After investigation, that gentleman
is dismissed from the Government service, and if
it was not on the representation of Annear and
Company, I have read in the corrvespondence
and elsewhere very strong complaints against
the superintendent— written by Annear and
Company—in which it was stated that he was
utterly unfit to superintend pile-driving, that he
had no experience of his work, and several other
charges of a like nature. It might not have
been, and I accept the word ofthe hon. gentleman
that it wasnotonaccount of the representations of
Annear and Company that that gentleman was
dismissed ; but it is a curious fact that those
men who were able to give evidence on behalf
of the Government were restrained from giving
that evidence, and that those very men have
been dismissed from the Government service
since. I am not going to go into the question at
greater length. There will, probably, be many
similar debates on the motion for going into
Committee of Supply before the Estimates are
through, Mr. Speaker; but I would like to
refer to one matter, and that is the position of
the Government with regard to their Hstimates
now. We have had thirteen dreary weeks’ work
oun the Land Bill, and have passed it through
the House with the exception of its last stage.
The Governinent can now form a fairly definite
idea of the effect that Bill will have on the
finances of the colony, and they should state
what they think. The reason given by the
Government for not going on with the Istimates
has been that they could not estimate the effect
of the Land Bill on the revenue.

The PREMIER : Who said so?

The Hox. Sir T. McILWRAITH: The
Treasurer.

The PREMIER: No, no!

The Honx. Sk T. McILWRAITH: I
have twice asked why the Loan Estimates
were not placed on the table of the House,
and the answer given was that that would
not be done wuntil further progress had
been made with the Land Bill. I took that
certainly to be the reason, and T interpreted it in
the way I have said. I cannot at this present

moment refer back to the actual words of the
Treasurer, but I understood what he said to
. mean that he wished to be able to estimate the

amount of revenue that he would receive from
i the operations of that Bill. He must know that
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pretty well now; at all events he can form an
estimate, and I would like him to consider
whether he should not curtail some of his
extravagant notions as displayed in  the
Estimates-in-Chief. I believe the effect of that
Bill will be to diminish the revenue, and
I believe the rosy hue he placed on the
finances of the colony will not be realised. 1
believe the figures of the Treasurer will fade, and
I am certain our prospects are not nearly so
bright as his Financial Statement would lead us
to understand, and that they will be less so now
that the Land Bill has passed. What effect will
that Bill have on the Estimates laid before us?
That they are extravagant Istimates I have
not the least hesitation in sayiug, and at a
time when everybody ix curtailing their expendi-
ture, the Government have thought fit to
increase theirs. There is a still wider matter
for discussion. The Treasurer has intimated
that he intends to propose a loan of £10,000,000.
Well, I remember when a £3,000,000 loan was
proposed by myself at a time when our prospects
were not much less bright then they are now
somewhat similar time possibly—a vote of want
of confidence was brought against my Govern-
ment on the ground that no clear indication had
been given by the then Government as to the
source from which the interest on the borrowed
money was to come. The Opposition de-
manded a clear financial statement showing
how interest to the extent of £120,000 was
to be raised by the Government; and the
Treasurer should now show us how he proposes
to raise the interest on ten millions of money.

How will he raise the money? I am
afraid the hon. gentleman will have to
recast some of his wnotions, or chance the

result brought about Ly the Thorn Government
in 1876. T hope the result will be no worse.
At all events.the position of the colony, and the
passing of the Land Bill with the amendments
that have been carried by the Committee, should
force on them a reconsideration of the extrava-
gant ideas they had at the commencement of the
session.  The sooner they realise what their
policy is, the better for the country, because it is
not simply putting expenditure in the Estimates
to enable us to vote the money; we require to
consider many grave matters before we decide
on the large amount that it is intended to
Dborrow. Up to the present we have waited
with great patience. I have never seen
the House wade so patiently through a Bill as it
has waded through the Land Bill. We yielded
to the desire to make the matter urgent and
have refrained from harassing the Government
in any way. There are inany other charges
against the Government in addition to those that
I have brought forward which, in the public
interests, ought to have been brought weeks, if
not months ago ; but I have taken the earliest
opportunity to bring two matters forward consis-
tent withmy desire toforward thelegislation of the
colony. Whether they will have any effect or not
on the Ministry I am not in a position to say ;
but I am perfectly satisfied that the disclosures
I have made and the arguments I have used,
will open the eyes of the country to the way in
which the taxpayers are being made to pay the
Government supporters.

The PREMIER said: I am obliged to the
hon. gentleman for not bringing these inatters
forward at an earlier opportunity and preventing
the passing of the Land Bill. I give him credit
for that. Nodoubtitis desirable that a measure
of that kind should receive, as it demanded, the
uninterrupted attention of the House until it had
gone through. It was that reason, and no other,
which weighed with the Government in setting
themselves to that business. The hon. gentle-
man says he has enlightened the House and the
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public of the colony as to the manner in whic
public money is being paid into the hands of
Government supporters. He did not distinetly
call Mr. P. ¥, Macdonald’s a case of corruption ;
but when he passed on to the other case he said,
“ Now I have to refer to another case of corrup-
tion.” I suppose, therefore, he considers Mr,
Macdonald’s as a case of corruption.

The Hox. Sig T. McILWRAITH : Hear,
hear !

The PREMIER : The hon. member is very
hard to deal witl, as I have said in this House
before. He uses words in a sense quite distinct
from their ordinary sense. He uses the word
“gorruption” in a sense quite distinct from that
in which ovdinary men use it, or as it is given in
a dictionary or used in any standard work. The
fact is that the amount of Mr. Macdonald’s claiin
was a just debt. Tt was just as much a debt of
this country as the interest on our dehentures,
or as the salaries we have to pay to the judges
of the Supreme Cowrt ; and there was no more
reason for the non-payment of that debt than
for the non-payment of the interest to the public
creditor. The hon. member calls it a case of
corruption, because of the bitter personal
animosity which he has admitted he has against
Mr. Macdonald.

The Hox. S T. McILWRAITH : I never
said anything of the kind. I have no personal
animosity against Mr. Macdonald. 1 have too
much contempt for him.

The PREMIER : The hon. member’s speech
showed that the whole proceedings to prevent the
payment of that claim were actuated by bitter
personal aniwosity. From the hon. member’s
own showing, the animosity displayed towards
Mr. Macdonald, because he went from one side
of the House to the other, has cost this country
£90,000. The hon. member proved that as
clearly as it could possibly be proved. He
proved that when Mr. Macdonald was
willing to accept £6,000 in full settlement
of his clairn, hon. members opposite pre-
vented him from getting the money; and
that afterwards, instead of the country having
to pay £6,000, the sum reached to over
£96,000. The hon. member proved that by his
own argument. Now, let me give a short his-
tory of the case—a correct history, and one
which does not contain the ervors that the hon.
member’s inaccurate memory has led him into.
Mr. Macdonald complained in the year 1866 of
the action of the department in selling runs to
which he believed himself entitled, and he
brought an action against the Government under
an Act passed in 1857 in New South Wales.
That action was tried in Rockbampton. It is
quite true, as the hon. member says, that the
present Chief Justice, who was then Premier of
the colony, acted as counsel at the trial for Mr.
Macdonald, He had been counsel for him during
the progress of the action. He became Premier
just before the case came on for trial, and as Mr.
Macdonald conld not get other leading counsel,
he considered he was justified—following the
example of the most eminent members of the
profession in Kngland—in continuing te act for
his client. The (Government were represented
by three of the most eminent members of the
Bar. The result of the action was that Mr
Macdonald got a verdict; but Mr. Lilley—who,
as I said, was Premier, and his counsel—had
nothing to do with the conduct of the case for
the Crown in any way. He allowed the case to
be dealt with by the Crown Law officers on the
advice of the Crown counsel, and the Crown
counsel appealed to the Supreme Court. He
appealed on techinical groumds, and the Supreme
Cowrt set aside the verdict of the jury on this
ground : that My, Tully, the nominal defendant,
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had certified to the correctness of a document put
inin evidence, when it ought to have been certitied
to by aumcbody else. But the court further made
an order arresting judgment, on the ground that a
material allegation was omitted from the state-
ment of Mr. Macdonald’s case. The law in the
colony at that time was this: That, when the
verdict of a jury was set aside on that ground,
the defendant should pay the costs of the netion,
Consequently, when the order was made, it was
part of the judgment of the Supreme Court that
the Crown should pay Mr. Macdonald his costs.

The Hox. S1r T. McILWRAITH : You took
ten years to find that out.

The PREMIER : The hon. member is wrong
again,  Mr. Macdonald did not appeal to the
Privy Council—I do not know why--but he said
he would appeal to the justice of Parliament ;
and in 1874 a select committee was moved for
by Mr. Buzacott, then one of the members for
Rockhampton. That committee recommended
that a sum of £6,000 should be paid to Mr.
Macdonald. At that time Mr. Macdonald was
willing to take that amount in full satisfaction,
not only of his claim for damages, but of the
interest to which he was entitled to receive from
the Crown. The majority of the House
favoured the granting of it, but it was ob-
structed by hon. members on the other side.
They admitted that it was a just claim, but,
because Mr. Macilonald supported the then Gov-
ernment, they refused to vote it. The head and
front of Mr. Macdonald’s offending was that
he went fromone side to the other, and supported
the Governuent. The vote wag obuts ructed, day
after day, and night after  night—I fowet
for how long—and ultimately $t was with-
drawn on the casting vote of the Chairman.
Then My, Macdonald waited o little while and
brought anaction again. The previous decision
of thecourt in no way deprived hin of his legal
right, and as he saw that his Litter political and
pusom.l enemies would not allow him to obtain
justice from Parliamaent, he thought he would
again try to get justice from the “courts of the
country. So he brought another action. In
the meantime the costs of the previous action,
which were a debt due by the Crown to him,
under the judgment of the Supreme Court—in
fact under the statute law of the colony—were
paid to him. The hon. member said that was a
wrong action. He said the sum was afterwards
placed on the Estimates and voted. 1 inter-
rupted him and said he was wrong; I
do not know whether he had them before him,
but if he had them before him he must have
seen that he was wrong. I have them before
me now. They are here. If he refers to the
Supplementary Tstimates, 1877, No. 2, the first
1te1n inthem i Schesdule--taxed costs, Macdonald

v, Tully, £2,165 17x. 7d.,” with a foot-note “*Paid
under authority of 20 Vic., No. 15, section 6, and
31 Vie., No. 3, section 21.7 The latter of these
Acts, 31 Vie., No. 5, section 21, was the Act which
made a plaintitf’s costs, when his judgment was
arrested on technical grounds, a debt due by the
defendaut to him. The other statute was the
one I have already referred to, passed in 1857,
Now the hon. gentleman swanted to know how
the Clovernment could have paid a debt wuder
the authority of that statute when it had been
repealed. Well, that is like the question why
a bowl of water weighs no wmore, with a fish
in it, than it did before it was put in. If that
Act wasrepealed they could not have acted under
it.  The answer is, the Act had mnot heen
repealed. The Act was dealt with by the claims
against the Government Act of 1866, the st
section of which provides—

*The Aet, twentieth of Victoria, number lifteen, except
as to proc eet‘mw already commencerd, or to clabing and
denmunds arisine from the administration of the public
lands prior to the passing of this Act, is horeby repealed.”
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Why that exception was put in was expressly to
cover Mr. Macdonald’s case, which was pending
when this Act was passed in 1866, Sothe Act was
not repealed, and is not repealed yet as to any
claim as to the administration of the public
lands prior to the 23rd May, 1866. That was
the authority under which that money was
paid to Mr. Macdonald. T shall read the
section of the Act which was then in force, and
which is still in force as to any action of
that kind.  The 5th section of the Act is—

“Costs of snit shall follow on either side, as in
ordinary cases hetween suitors, any law or practice o
the contrary notwithstauding.”

The Gth scetion is

1t shall be lawful for the Governor, with the advice
of the Executive Counncil, to satisfy and pay any judg-
inent or decree recovered hy any snch petitioner out of
any available balance of the Consolidated Revenue of
the said colony, and to perform the judgment or decree
of the said cowrt, in terms of such judgment or decree.”’

The principle on which that Act was drawn and
passed by a Parliament which recognised the prin
ciple which has always been recognised in Great
Britain and by every other dependency of Great
Britain, so far as Tknow, with the exception of
Queensland for a period of a few short years, is this
—that for the Crown to know whatis right, to be
told what is right by a duly constituted tribunal,
and to doright, are synonyinous. The proposition
is sometimes put inthisform: thatthe Crown can
do no wrong. That means that for the Crown to
know what is right and to do itare thesame thing.
In that casethe Crown were told by the Supreme
Court what was right to be done—that they mwed
that amount of money to Mr, Macdonald and that
it was lawful for them to pay it. Thereupon
the Government paid it.  Then, sir, Mr. Mac-
douald, as I said, preferred not %o have recourse
to Parlinment, w here his personal and political
eneniies were deterniined to prevent him from
obtaining the small modicum he was contented
to accept as justice, and he had recourse again to
the comrts of law, He brought an action against
the Government, which was tried at Rockhamp-
ton in 1879, and damnages were again assessed
in 1880. The case was fally argued, and the
result was that he recovered judgment. The
hon. member says he ought not to have got
judgment. The hon. gentleman was Premier at
the time ; he was represented by his Attorney-
General, and got the best counsel he could.
They were able counsel too, and there is no
reason to suppose that counsel did not do their
best. The witnesses were there—they were not
absent as the hon. gentleman savs. The loss of
the lambs was not put forward, and no claims
were made in respect to them. The jury were
very intelligent men. The hon. gentleman may
revile a 1\/(1(41\11¢.L1111)t01'1 jury, but they were a
particularly intelligent jury They
again awarded a Gertain amount of damages.
We are not concerned in this House to know
whether the jury gave a proper amount of
damages or not. We are not the tribunal
to review the decision of a jury, as we
were asked to do by petition a week ago—
or of the Supreme Court. The jury awarded
a certain amount. The Crown appealed to
the Supreme Court, and they lost the case. The
Supreme Court awarded to Mr Macdonald,
under the authority of the Act of 1857, as T have
quoted, a sum of money, the amount of which I
forget now. 1t does not mwtter but it was several
thousands of pounds. That then became a debt
due t0 Mr. Macdonald, just exactly the same as
the interest on the public debt is a debt due to
the public creditor.  Bus, as I said, then for the
first time, asx far ag T know, in the hlstmy
of any British country, there was a (overn-
ment, in power who declined to recognise the
principle that the Crown i beund to do its duty.
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There was no oue that could inake them pay, and
until they were made they would uot pay. Lhave
said here in my place that it was a disgrace to
the colony—to the British Empire—that any
person exercising authority in the name of Her
Majesty should repudiate a just debt.  Whether
the judgment of the Supreme Court was right or
not was a matter with which they had no concern,
There was a debt, and they did not dare to
appeal to the Privy Conneil. T suppose the hon.
member will contend that, because a loan is
floated at too low prices, we should reduce
the interest; that if a Government made a
foolish bargain in selling the debentures so low
we should pay the interest on the debentures as if
they were sold at par. That Govermment went
out of power in comrse of time, but in the mean-
time, to gratify their hatred of My, Macdonald,
they plunged the country into a very large debt
of £4,500 for interest. I do not know how long
their hatred and malignity would have induced
them to let this interest run ou, but actually,
to gratify their hatred of Mr. \facduna]d they

a

charged the country 8 per cent. on that big
debt.  When the claiin was renewed to the

present Government they thought it was quite
time to pay their debts, stop repudiation, and save
the conmntry from the burden of interest. They
paid the debt under the authority of the statute,
and what other authority could be wanted ? That
is a correct and short history of the Macdonald
case. That is what the hon. member calls corrup-
tion. He may call it corruption. T do not care
what he calls it, but L eall it paying a debt. Now
I pass to the next ease—that of Annear and
Company. It was said by the hon. member that
there were fearfully evil things in connection with
thatease. Let megive ashort summaryof it. The
hon. member referred to the form of railway con-
tract we have in use here, in which he says there
is a stringent clause which provides that under
no circumstances can the contractor claim any-
thing from the Commissioner, uunless the
amount is certified by the Chief Kngineer
to be due, aeither for damages or anything else.
That is a stringent condition certainly, the most
stringent condition T am aware of, or ever heard
of 3 and T am sorry to say that I awm responsible
for its having been adopted. That is to say, 1
am sorry now, for this reazon: That condition
would have been most just and fair if we had a
proper Chief Knginecr who woull act as an
independent  arbiter between the Governinent
and the contractor, and be simply a judge to
decide disputes, without bias, foar, favour, or
affection. But if the Chief Kngineer allows
himself to become biassed on one side or the
other, to be influenced by pressure from his
superior officer, or in any other way, a clause of
that kind becomes inignitous. Now, I do not
mean to make any attack on Mr., Stanley, but I
shall give my reasons in a minute why it was desir-
able to appoint snother Chief Engineer to deter-
mine this particular case. Under this condition
the Chief Engineer is the arbiter between the
district engineer in immediate charge of the works
and the contractors A dispute took place
between the contractors and the district engineer,
who, whether from fault of temper or otherwise,
unfor tunately had disputed with every contractor
whose works he had to supervise. Indeed, one
of the very reasons why that condition was
ingerted was because that gentleman had got the
Government into so many difficulties that it was
neceszary to devise some plan to avoid the con-
sequent loss and expense.  DBut what did the la,tp
Government do? This msan—>Mr Switl
quarrelled with the contractors on a grea.t
number of points which ought to be decided
by the Chief Engineer, the late Governmmnent
appointed him Chief Engineer to decide the
disputes Dbetween the contractors and himself.

w
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Was that fair—was it honourable? Ts it not ove
of the principles of natural justice that no man
can be a judge in his own cause? Another of
the great complaints—whether well-founded or
not does not matter —I think Mr. Wade decided
that there was nothing init— was that a mistake
made by Mr. Stanley himself had iuvolved the
contractors In very heavy losses; and they con-
tended  that it was not fair to ask him to
adjudicate upon a clain, the allowing of which

would have been an  admission thut he was
entively in fault.
The Hox. S T. McILWRAITH : There

was no dispute about that at all.

The PREMIER: The hon. member i8
wrony ; there was a very serious dispute about it.

The Hox. Str T. McILWRAITH :: It was
simply a mistake in book-keeping ; Annear
admitted he had been wrong.

The PREMIER : The hon. member pointed
out himself that one complaint made by the
contractors was that they made a tender to sink
eight feet in diorite rock, and were required to sink
ewh’cceu feet at the same price. That was the
nature of the claini. L am not expressing any
opinion as to its merits; it 1s not at all
material. The complaint was that the person
the Government wanted to decide the claim
was the person through whose default the
Josses had occurred to the contractors. Now,
the object of that clause which I framed was
that the person who was to determine the
case should be an entirely independent person.
‘What would any ordinary private person do, if by
a bargain with another he was hound to subwiit
any dis spute to the decision of a person who hini-
self had got him into the hole? What would any
hon. mewmber of this House do if he had such a
contract with a contractor, and the contractor
said to him, *“ You surely will notinsist upon the
letter of your contract, and make e refer the
question to the man who is the cause of all
the trouble?” If it were my case, I should
scorn to take advantage of a condition of that
kind, I should think it was dishonest to do
anything of the sort. Now, sir, if the Gov-
crnment had referred the matter to arbitration,
as was suggested, that would have been a distinet
departure frow the conditions of the contract ;
butto appoint an entirely independent chief engi-
neer was an exact fulfilment of those conditions,
the meaning of which was that there should e
an independent and entirely disinterested chief
engineer.  What did we do then? The hon.
member says I interfered with the Minister for
Works. The best mode of obtaining an entirely
independent and competent chief engineer seemed
to be to ask for one from one of the neigh-
bouring colonies ; the Colonial Secretary is the
medium of cominunication with the other Gov-
ernments, and the communication was, therefore,
sent by me. I asked Mr. Stuart to nowinate a
chief engineer, and Mr. Wade was nominated.
I know nothing whatever about Mr. Wade,
except that T understand he is an engineer of con-
siderable eminence and great ability ; T saw him,
I believe, only once. Now, sir, having arrived at
that stage, what i the next complaint the hon.
member makes? Tt appears that Mr. Wade was
under the impression that the Minister for Works
wished him to decide the matter on fair and
equltmble 1)111101])1(‘» on its merits, and not to do
any “pointing,” to we a collognial expression.
That, sir, is the head and front of the charge.
The hon. gentleman complains that the Govern-
ment, having a dispute with a contractor, ex-
pressed their wish that it might be deter
on its merite—on fair and equitable principles,
That s what he calls plundering the public,
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The
words were
specifications.”

The PREMIER: The Minister for Works
expressly wished that it should be determined on
fair and equitable principles — that the case
should be dealt with on its merits, and not on
any small technical points. Those are exactly
the instructions I could conceive any honest
man giving if he were asked how "the case

Hox.

13

S T, McILWRAITH : The

strictly within the lines of the

was to be decided:— ““Take the case on
its merits. I do not want to wrong the
man, and take any mean points on hin.”
That is the complaint against us. Well, I

Lope we shall never do anything more blame-
worthy than that—that when we have a dispute
with a man we ask that the case may bs decided
on fair and equitable principles. If the hon.
member can find no greater cause for blame in
us than that, we shall not suffer very much from
his strictures.  What happened afterwards, I do
not know, and I do not care. I had nothing
further to do beyond sending the telegram to

Mr. Stuart.  The hon. member says that
. f ;

the Government in some way hurried on

the arbitration. I do not know anything

about that. I thought it might have taken two
or three weeks, and instead of that it took three
months,  Mr. Smith was away, and Mr. Wade
did not give his decision before he had heard
Mr. Smith’s views.

Mr. NORTOXN : He stopped with him ten
minutes.

The PREMIER : Whether he stayed ten
minutes or ten hours, I have not the slightest
doubt that Mr. Wade obtained from him
the information he thought important. If
Mr. Wade did not know how to decide the
case I cannot help it. He may have decided
the case entirely out of his own head, but I
think that is highly improbable. I assume that
he was competent and honest, and that he got
all the information he wanted. Surely when a
man is appointed for such a purpose, especially
a man coming from another colony, a man whose
reputation was at stake, who already had a high
reputation-—surely we may assume that he acted
in a reasonable and sensible manner! I shall
assume 5o until the contrary is proved. I assume
that Mr. Wade, heing competent, acted honestly
and got all the evidence that was mnecessary.
The amount of the award is neither here nor
there; but the award being made it became a
debt due to the contractors, who might have
issued a writ for the amount against the Com-
missioner next morning. And why should the
Government seek to impose conditions when the
money was actually payable under the con-
tract? Having been certified by the Chief
Engineer, it was payable just as much as a
promissory note that had fallen due; and the
contractor could go to the Supreme Court
and get a summary order for judgment within
ten days after the issue. That is the history of
the second instance of corruption. I do not
care to go into the details, as they are not
matters of concern to the Government.” The third
point made by the hon. gentlemnan was that the
Government were afraid to go on with their
Istimates because they did not know what effect
the Land Bill might produce on the revenue.

The Hox. Srv T. McILWRAITH : I said
“delayed the Estimates.”

The PREMIER : I have already pointed out
that it was desirable to finish the Land Bill first.
We wished to get rid of that heavy business,
and I hope we have done so for the present.
We propose to take the Estimates now, with
other business that may come up for considera-
tion, Then, sir, with respect to the effect the
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new Land Act will have on the Estimates—
we do not propose to remodel our Hstimates,
We propose to go on with them as they are. If
it is proposed to make increases where they are
not justifiable, hon. members will express their
opinions, and come to a division, if necessary.
For any increase or any expenditure set
down in the Estimates, the Government will
be prepared to give reasons as the items come
on, If these reagons are insufficient, of course
the items will be negatived.  We are all aware
of the unfortunate season we are now passing
through, but we lhope soon to see a change for
the better. There is no reason to be seriously
alarmed for the prosperity of the colony. T
believe that our resources are sutficiently elastic
to carry us through this financial year; before
the termination of which I confidently antici-
pate that there will be a return to the usual
seasons, which will place the revenue, notwith-
standing the disturbing influence that must
result from a change in the administration of the
land laws, in a far better position than it has
ever been in hefore.

Mr. NORTON said : In the observations I
have to make I have no intention of referring to
the award to P. ¥. Macdonald. It is a case
which arose many years ago—long before I had
a seat in this House—and I have never felt
called npon to go into that matter to such
an extent as to entitle any remarks 1 might
make on the subject to the consideration of
hon. members. But the arbitration case con-
nected with Messrs. Annear and Thorn is one I
know something about, and one about which I
feel bound to say something in order to refer to
certain matters not referred to by the leader of
the Opposition, and also to remove any mis-
conceptions caused by the speech made just
now by the leader of the Government. In
the first place the hon., member’s argument
was chiefly based on the contract given
in connectlion with the 1st section of the
railway.  Now, that section included a bridge,
the specification for which, in the fivst instance,
required the contractors to sink eight feet into
the diorite rock. After that they were required
by the Chief ¥ngineer to sink a farther distance
of ten feet, making in all eighteen feet. There is
one thing rather remarkable in regard to that
argument, and also with regard to another argu-
ment used hy the Premier, to the effect that the
Chief FEngineer, who had himself heen con-
cerned in the matter, was made the arbiter of
the matters in dispute—it is rather remarkable
that that contract was completed and the con-
tractors signed the final vouchers, which were
also signed by the Chief Engineer, without any
protest whatever being made by the con-
tractors. They gave a clear receipt for all sums
to which they were entitled, and how afterwards
they could make a claim is altogether beyond
my comprehension. In ordinary business it is
not usual for a contractor to sign a full receipt
for all that he is entitled to, and afterwards
to make a claim for the money. Such
a thing is never done; and I say the thing
is absurd. After the contract was completed,
after all the payments had been made, after the
final voucher had been signed, after the money
had been paid, and the receipt had been given—
then it occurred to the contractors to make a
protest. Why, sir, the thing is preposterous. I
will undertake to say that no honest lawyer in
this town if asked for his opinion—no decent
lawyer—would advise aman to take such a claim
into court under the circumstances. There
really wasno claim, becauseit had been absolutely
settled by theman appointed to do so by law—the
Chief Engineer for Railways. What claim could
the contractor have after that ? T do not know
how the cuse stood when the hon, member for
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Townsville wos in office, hut T know that some
proceedings had taken place, which T believe
resulted in the rvefusal of the Minister (Mr.,
Macvossan) to acknowledee the claim of the
contractors.  After I succeedsd Alr. Macrossan,
this case being then in court, the Crown Solicitor
came to me one morning, and asked me if T
would cousent to an d.ll)ltl ation,  He said
that the contractors proposed, without mc]mhu,,
that it should be sulnmtted o avbitration. 1
said T would not consent, was not golng to
interfere with the case as it btoml, and on that
ground 1 refused. The case went on, and the
devisiom of the court was that the comm ssioner,
who had given his final decision, wasther whtmfm,
and that the contractors had 1o elaim whateve
The contractors suffered no hardship.  They
were exembted by the conditions of the contract
from undertaking any extra work, unless they
sould asree wmh the Chiasf Kngineer as to the
price to be paid for it Thers is. 2 condition
which specially stipulates that, in the event of
the Chief Ingineer requiring extra work to be
done, he should offer it to the contractors, and
that in the event of their not being able to agree
as to the price to be paid for it somebody elw
should be asked to do the work., What claims
have the contractors on that account if they
undertook to do the work on those conditions?
There was no hardship, and there could be no
claim. I have 1uured to this matter solely
because the Premier spoke of it as a case of
special havdship to the contractors; and it is
clearly nothing of the sort.  With respect to
Lr. Wade, I wish it to be understood that T not
only know nothing of Mr. Wade, but that T tale
it for granted that he is a \feuhlmu(m (uite
capable of carrying out the work properly if he
is enabled to do so, and that he would give a
right decision on thL, evidence put hefore him.
But it was not his husiness to go about looking
for evidence, It was the business of the Govern-
ment to put the evidence affecting the Govern-
ment side of the case before him, and if they did
not, he must judye simply by the evidence he
hud, and give his verdict accordingly. I will
refer fivst to Mr. Wade’s appointment, and I
think I can show that his appointment was
illegal, and tlmb his decision was illesal. The
ters of Mr. Wade’s appointment are contained
in a copy of “1\111111th of Proceedings” of the
Executive Counncil of the 21st May,

“ iz Bxcellency the Governor, at the ins
Honourable the Secretary for Public Worl
proposes to the Council that W. B. Wade, Chief Assistant
Fugineer, Railw Depavtment, Svdney, be temporarily
appointed Chicl LEnginecr, Maryvborongh Railway, for
the purpose ol inguiring into and deciding all disputes
and differences hetween Messys, J. T. Annear and Comn-
pany, the contractors for the construction ot the Mary-
borough Bailway, aud the Acting Commissioner for
Railways.

“ The Council advise as recommended.”
I must say I do not blame the Minister for
Works in the slightest degree in this matter; I
belicve be ’Lhou"ht he was acting quite Lmlv
But I do blume the Premier, because he under-
stood the law of the cese, and could not have
failed to see that the appointment was an illegal
one.  There was at that time a Chief Lh”mem
for Railways, and thet Chief Engineer was the
person appointed by law to settle hose disputes.
Indeed, with regard to the first section, the dis-
pute el beent a hwolutely settled, and h ad never
been called in question until they knew the
whole thing was decided.  The 40th paragraph
of the general conditions of the contract,
which has already been read by the ledum of
the Opposition, provides that in case of ar
dispute arising, whother professional or other-
wise, the sawe shall be referred to the Chief
Fhrslneer, whose decision shall be final and bind-
ing ou wil parties, anythivg L law or equity to
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the contrary notwithstanding. I say this dis-
pute was referred to the Chief Engineer, and
yet the Govermment, in order to make things
luu]\ \wll, afterwards appointed another man as

Chief ¥ngineer of the Maryborough line. Was
it not perfectly absurd, in face of the condition
I have referred to, and which was drawn by the
Premier himself, to appoint another Chief Engi-
neer ? How can a decision be given twice over—
first by one Chief Tingineer, and then by another
Chief Engineer? There is no excuse shown for
making such an appointment. Iad there been
no Chief ¥ngineer it would have been the business
of the Government to appoiut one, but we had a
Chief ¥ngineer of Railways, whose duty it was
to decide in all disputes of the kind. How,
then, could the Government appoint a second
Chief Tngineer without first displacing the
existing one? Do we not all see that it is a
sham?  The thing is an absurdity ; and it is in
order to malke it seem vight and legal that it was
done in that way. I have al ady said that I do
not blawe the Minister for Works at all, because,
having a colleague on whom he could rely for
points of law, he would not meldle with them
unless there was special reason for doing so, and
the responsibility was taken off his hands. The
Linister for Works could have decided the
matter quite as well as anybody slse, ax, indeed,
except in regard to professional dptmls, umld
any man of ordinary intelligence. The Blinister
for Works would have acted in a spirit of perfect
fair play to all parties, but under no circum-
stances would he h allowed the first section of
the contract to be brought up again after.the final
vouchers had been swned, Mld the money paid
over without protest. I will refer again to the
decision given by Mr. Wade., I do not wish to
blame AMr. Wads in this respect. It was not his
busin to question whether his instructions
were right,  All he kuew was contained in the
notification of his appointment, and the instrue-
tions he received from the Minister for Works,

Jut the appointment was illegal, and the lllbtl'll(r
tions were illegal. Accmdmg to Mr. Wade's
letter of the 13th May, which has Deen 1'eud by
the leader of the Opposition, he does not seem
to know for certain what his instructions were.
He understands that he has to do certain things,
and this is what he says :—

“T find that the case has been to a certain degree
dealt with by the Supreme Cowrt on the grounds of the
general conditions of contract. and that an award
respecting No. 1 contract has heeh made by the Chief
Ingineer strictly within the lines of the specifieation ;
but I understand, from the verbal instruetions given to
me by thie Honourabie the inister for Works, that [
amn asked to put these technical decisions entirely on
one side, and to examine the yuestion at issue with a
vicw of giving a just and equitable award of the amounts
(if any) justly due to the contractors. I wish to make
myselt elear upon this point, as, if T had to give an
opinion from the same standpoint as thie Chief Bngineer
—that is. strictly within the lines ot the specitications—
my decision would dilter on several points from that I
now forward to you.”

Now, Mr. Speaker, T say that if the appointment
of Mr. \V‘tdu had been legal, which I deny, Mr.
Wade has shown, by his statement there, that it
would have been illegal. He says that ho re-
ceived instructions—verbal instrugtions—from
the Minister for Works. These were the only
instructions he received, becanse T put this ques-
tion to the Minister for Works on the 27th
August last, pursuant to notice ;—

ertificate for section No. 1, Mary-

“1. Was the final ¢
Torough Raity , on aeecount of whieh the eontractors
have heen awarded £1,834 18s. 10d. by Mr. Wade, signed

by thewn without protest ?

2. Waore written tustruetions given by the Minister, or
issioner. to Mr. Wade to waive any of
neral conditions of Amear and Conpauy '~ ¢oli-
orowers instructions of any kind given lins i
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“ Answer—

“1. The tinal certifieate is never signed by the con-
tractors. but the final voucher, for hialance dic on No. 1
contract, was signed by contractors without torinal pro-
test. See Che ef]“nfrmocx letter, 2nd AMay, 1884, page 11
of printed papers.”

I refer more particularly to the answer to the
2nd question :—

“ 2, The only iustrietion given to Mr. Wade was that
conveyed by the Acting Commissioners letter to him,
dated 20th April, 1885 See page 11 of priuted papers.”
This is Mr. Curnow?s letter to Mr, Wade :—

“ Commissioner for Railwayx Oflice.
< Brishane, 29th April, 188F,

*SIR,

“Thave the honour to inform you that Hix Tixcel-
lency the Governor, with the advice of the lixecutive
Council, has heen pleased to appoint you temporavily
to the position ot Chict Bugineer, Maryhorough Railway,
for the pur pose of inguiring into and deciding all dis-
put renzes hetween Messrs, J. T Annear and
Co.. the contractors tor the construction of the Mory
horough Railway. and the Comsaissioner for Railways.

L now heg to hand yor all papers in counertion with
this case. and to ask il you will he good eunoungh 1o
favour me with your report at your convenience.”
Now, sir, the last paragraph of the general con-
ditions requires :—

“XNone of the conditions of this contract shull
be varted, waived, discharged, or released. either in law
or in equily. wiless hy the express consent of the

oner testilied in writing under his seal.”
But there were no instruetions whatever
Mr. Wade in writing. The only instractions he
received were verbal instructions frown the Min-
ister for Works, which he savs he wnderstood to
mean—he does not say positively—but that he
understood to mean that he was not  to
be bound by the specifieations of the con-
tract in giving his award. 1 therefors say
that, if Mr. Wades appointinent had buux
legal in the first instance, his not having received
instructions In writing makes his award illegal
in the second ; so that T contend that both his
appointment and award were illegal. 1 have
now a few wornds to say about his Taward.,  He
says—this is a continuation of the letter I read
just now :

“in deciding this matter I have taken for my
the schednle of prices, amd the hroad prineiple of
dule contraets that *all sehedule work done hy e
tractor must be puaid for. but o contingent work, sweh
ax providing rosds, tewrporary wor or plant,” and
“that all shortecomings of the countractor as 1o time
must he dealt with directly by fine< for overtime. and
1ot hulireetty by with: 1lding payment for a worl
aetually done.' Inthe eass of the present eontracts it
mus he raneinberad that the canses ol delsy wore the
actions of the Government in oriering additional works
to the Anticua Bridge, and m uot providing the engine
power specitied.”

Having made thix statement, of conrse MMr
Wade didd not go into the conditions of the
contract, and it 1w, therefors, only natural that
he should make the mistakes he did. Not hav ing
had instructions from  the Comnissioner, in
writing, to waive any of the conditions, he was
Dbound to see that the contract wax fulfilled
exactly in the sawe terms as the Chief Enyineer
was required to do when he gave his award.
There are no less than three parazraphs in the
general conditions which refer to the suspending
of the certific: ate, coutrary to le ideas that My,
Wade entelt‘nnul, as to what should be done in
the event of any shortecomings on the part of the
contractor.  Pavagraph 11 states :—

“Nhould the contractor refuse or neglect to earyy out
the instructions of the Chief Engincer or of his super-
intending ollicer. the Chief Engineer shall have power
to suspend the wual wonthly certiticate  uatil such
instructions bave heen complied with.”

The 19th specially provides that—

“The Commissioner shall have fall power. on the
report of the Chief Engincer that the work as approved
as aloresnid ix not inaesordance with the contract, to
deduet from any wonevs that may become due to the
contractor the whole amount that has been paid on

ven to
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account of sneh werk.,  And if, in the opinion of the
Fugineer, further inquiry is necessary or desirable be-
fore any certificate is given, he shall have power to
withhold sneh certifieate for the purpose of making such

The 40th paragraph is exactly to the same
purport 3 so that the course that was followed
by the Chief Engineer, in withholding the certifi-
cate of paywent until the conditions had been
complied with, was strictly in accordance with
the contract signed by the contractors. Mr.
Wade, in the sawe paragraph, says
cIn the ease of 1he preseat contraets it must he
remenbered that the eanses of deliay were the setions
of the Govermwent in ordering additiondd works to
the Antigna Bridge. and in not providing the engine-
power specified.”
But there was no engine-power specified. e
actually gave his awwrd in favenr of the con-
tractors, ause (rovernument had not fultilled
their conditions as to supplying the engine-power
which was wpecified ; and yet there was no
engine- poswer \peuﬁod in the general conditions.
There is a coudition which nnght be read to
specifv a certain power, because it is provided
that the commissioner shall allow the con-
tractor the use of one Joenmotive cngine and
twenty ballast waggons for the purpose of hallast-
ing the permanent w for which a charge is to
he wade. It 1111\\1(]8\ that the contractor
shall have the use of the engine and tvucks; but
there is no specification \xhatum as to ony
power that the engine is to he. I can quite
imagine that Mr. Wade asmmed that, because
twenty trueks wers allowed in addition to the
engine, the engine should be able to draw
the tw enty trueks. T do not Mame him for put-
ting that construction upon it; I think it is a
very natural one, but at the same tine there is
notling of the kind in the specification, and le
hadl o right to assume it. Now, with reference
to the evidence, zs the hon. the leader of
the Opposition has pointed out already, Mr.
Stanley notified to the Government the necessity
which he said there was for sending someone
with Mr. Wade to Maryborough for the parpose
of examining the line, in order that the case
wight bo fairly 1(\}\1c~entvd on the part of tho
Government.  Nobody was sent. Mr, W
delivered into the hands of the Thil 1~L1ne~4
ors, I should say—and, although it
that Mpr. Depree should be
have nothing whatever to say
against that gentleman, I do net think he
ought to have been placad in that position,
Mr. Smith, axsugeested by Mr., Stanley, wasthe
officer who ought to have accompanied dMr. Wade,
He was not in Brisbane ; but no attempt was
made to get him.  He was within reach of DBris-
bane, and could have bwen got within a week.
No attempt was made to get his evidence until
he came here without the knowledge of the Gov-
ernment, and then. having arived at the last
moment, he suggested to the Engineer that he
should ask him to let Lim know what he had
to say about the matter. The ease had been
gone into so far that Mr. Wade had decided
to leave DBrishane on a certain morning, and
on the previous night Mr. Smith arvived in Bris-
bane from Melbourne, where he had heen for
nine weeks,  He received a note from Mr. Wade
arking him to wait upon him in the morning s
te didso, and Mr. Sniith told me himself he was
not aquarter of an hour in Mr, Wade's presence.
Of course, a portion of that time would not have
heen taken np In asking questions ; and way it
possible that a ‘,enthim.m ocenpying the pnquun
hie had held as enginecr on the hne could, in a
quarter of an hnm, or an hour, give all the evi-
dence which ought to have heen put bafore M
Wade to enable him to avvive at o fair decision ?
Tt was not possible, and, as wuas pointed out by
the leader of the Opposition, My, Swith was

wa
the contrac
was  suguested
gent, while I




Supply.

asked to report.  He sent in a report, and that
report was not received until about a week after
Mr. Wades award was wmade. The Premier
spoke of the time which had heen spent over the
case. I think it was thivtcen days from the
time Mr. Wade came here until the day of his
report, which waswritten from Sydnev. Wasthere
not justificationin saying that the case wies hurried
over, and that evidence was not put before Mr.
Wade that ought to have been ? Tt was disgraceful
that any case shonld be settled in that way. Apart
from that, I do not think that the paywent
should bave Dbeen made in that w 1f the
Minister bad taken the affair into his own hands,

1t woull have been quite competent for him to
have made an avard if he saw that an injustice
had been done. I know that eommissioners do
act unjustly 5 they try to act strictly within the
conditions of thecontract, and.in doing so, if they
are in suy donbt at all they have an inclination to
give the Governnient the benetit, sothat in some
cases they are apt to act unfaivly towards the con-
tractors. 1 do not believe in the 40th par: agraph.

I think it is too stringent altogether, Decause it
leaves the decision of a case entirely in the hands

of one man, and that man from his position is
bonnd to be prejudiced in favour of the Goveirn-
ment and against the contractor. The effect of
that is, that the coutractors in sending in their
tenders, as s matter of course, charge more
highly than they would do under other circumn-
stances.  They know there s a tendency to act
unfairly-—not puarposely, but there is & tendency
to give the benefit of a doubt to the Governmnents

and, knowing that is o, naturally enough t}wv
demand a hwher UL tlmn ther would undsv
other civeurnsbances, Engineers give awards to
the Governwent, whlchthcv on second thoughts,

do not feel certain about, (md therefore, thev
throw the contractor nvexbomd In receiving
awards that have been given by the commiis-
sioners T have heard them adniit themselves that
certain decisions that they have given were
improper cnes, and the contractor should have
had the benefit. I think that the 40th paragraph
is a bad one, that itis bad for the enntractors, bad
for the (xmunment and bad for the cuuntxy
I believe the effect of it 1x, that we have paid a
higherprice forour railways, and, atthe same tinme,
the contractors are less satisf '11 than they would
be if the paragraph weve abolished altogether. So
far, T agree with the Premier. At the time the
Prewier drew it up, no doubt he thouf;ht he was
doing a very good thing, but he has changed his
mind, TUnder the circumstances we are ]ustlﬁp(l
in asking whether the Govermmnent intend to
appoint an independont engineer to act as Mr,
Wade had done, or is one irm of contractors
only to be so favoured, and all others set aside ?
I know there are several other cases where a
great deal of dissatisfaction hss been shown with
the decisions. A Minister can get both sides

totrethel and hear \\hat they h‘we to say; and,

in all ordinary cas=+, he ean do it as w ¢l him.
self.  If he feels he is in any doubt abont being
able to do so, he can call upon someone else in
whom he has confidence to recomnmend to him
how the award should be given. 1 do not think
an arbitrator should be appointed under the con-
ditions as they now stand : nor do T think that any
ordinary commissioner <honld be appointed so
Imwasthele isa commissioner at theheadof affairs
in the Railw ay Department. 1 dn not think it is
necessary forme to say more. T have pointed
out that the appointmeunt of "\Jr Wade was
illegal, and that his award was illegal because of
his not having given it in acumhxnce with the
speeification ; and I think it i3 a gross case
in which public money was illegally el away,
hecause, pat U(n]n]v in the metter of the fiest
contract, the sum of L1.831 18 14, waz paid in
connection with a contract for which the con-
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tractors had already given their receipt in full.
Therefore they could have no claimn what-
ever, There is one matter I have referred to
already, but not thoroughly : that is, in regard
to the p‘utmul‘n case the Premier bl(mnht up,
showing that the Chief Kngineer of R. Jxlwav
was not the person who should have given a
decision. The contractors made a claim which,
it was p«)m’ced out by the Chief Fngineer after-
wards, had besan paid. The accounts appeared
to have been very carefully considered by the
Chief Engineer, who stated that he had included
the labour, and added 30 percent. It is now
admitted by the contractors that the whole
amount was paid. This additional item ought
not to bave been paid; 1 do not know any-
thing that could be pl.unev than that. And
that is the very case which the Premier
brought up to show that the Chief Engineer of
Railways was not a man who was fit to settle
these cases. I have pointed out that the claim
which the Premder made in consideration of the
contractors, on the ground of their being bound
to carry out that additional work, had no
foundation. They had no claim at all on
account of that extra sinking, because they

need not have undertaken the work., Tt is
specially stipulated in the general conditions
that, in all cases where additional work s

required to be done, the contractors shall have
the option of undertaking it if they like; but in
the event of their not coming to terms with the
Chief Engineer it shall be done by somnebody else.
They had undertaken the work and entered into
an agreentent with the Chief Iingineer, and after
their claim having been settled they were not
satisfied, and they then made a claim to which
they were not entitled in any way whatever.
The MINISTER FOR WORKS (Hon. W,
Miles) said : Mr. Speaker,—The hon. member
for Mulgrave has referved to my name in con-
nection with the setttement of Mr. Macdonald’s
claim by the Government. I was one of the
commnittee who investigated that claim, and I
knew a good deal of the circumstances ; and 1
came to the conclusion that the amount awar ded
by the jury at Rockhampton was very far in
excess of the amomunt Mr. Macdenald was
entitled to. 1 opposed the amount of the
money heing paid, because T did not think Mr,
Macdonald was entitled to it. I am free to adnit
that I made use of some very strong language
against  Mr.  Macdonald on account of the
action he took in endeavouring to force that
claim. Bince that time the case has been retried.
A new trial was held at hnddhnnptull s0me ten
vears L\.fterwaut , and the jury again gave Mr.
Macdonald a verdict for an amount nearly the
same as that whiclh had been previously
awarded him., T thuefme came to the con-
clusion that, whatever opposition I had in the
former instance, at all events the case had
been taken back and reconsidered by the jury,
and they came to the conclusion the second time
that Mr. Macdonald was entitled to the same
amount as they had granted him the first time.

The Hox. Siz T. McILWRAITH: No;
£4,000 less,

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: T believe
that it would have been better for the country if
Mr. Macdonald’s claim had been settled at the
tinte.  What have we been doing during the last
weelk in passing this Land Bill? - We have been
legirlating that in the event of the board who
are to administer our land law coming to a
decision and the plaintiff is not satisfied he may
appeal and have the matter referred back, and
the decision on the rehearing shall be final.
That was the case with My, Macdonald’s clab
it was referrsd back to the jury and he got the
same award, and it should Lave heen settled then,
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I have nothing further to say upon that matter.
With reference to the action I am said to have
taken insettling this claim made upon the Govern-
ment by the contractors of the Marylorough and
Gy .n}»le Railway, T am accused by the leader
of thir Opposition of telling the arbitrator called
in that he was to in\r'ﬁrstigate and settle this
case on its merits.  Would it not have been the
biggest farce in creation, supposing I had ecome to
the conclusion to instruct the arbibrator to inves-
tigate the case and frane everything in his veport
in favour of the Government ?

The Hox., Sz T. McILWRAITIT :
you were very likely to do tlmt.

The \IT\IIS'ib R¥OR WORKS : That is the
only charge the leader of the Opposition has
brought against me—that Iinstrusted Mr. Wade
to decide the case on its merits. [ should like
to know what else T was to do. What instruc-
tions was [ to give? Was I to instruct Mr. Wade
to investigate the case, but whatever he did he was
to bring in his award in favour of the Grovern-
ment? Is that what the leader of the Opposition
thinks I should have done? I had no intention
of doing anything of the kind. T will take one
single instance. The Chief Iingineer entered
into an agreement with the contractors for the
hire of au engine and ballast waggons. 1t was
guaranteed that the en gine was cmpahle of draw-
ing ten loaded ballast waggons

Mr. NORTON : Where is the guarantee ?

The MINISTER FOR WORXS: When it
was worked it was found it would only draw five
Joaded wayggons, and the arbitrator, Mr. Wade,
in that case reduced the chavge from £6 to £3
a day.

Mr. NORTON :
themselves,

The MINISTER FOR
did nothing of the sort.

The Hox. St T. McILWRATTH:
you believe Mr. Wade if he says so?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: The hon.
member for Port Curtis does not know what he
is talking about. He has been driving away
there for nalf an-hour, aud there is not a single
member in the Hmbe, except himself, w h()
knows what he has been saving.

The Hox. Srr T. MeILAWRAITH :
believe Mr, Wade ?

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: This is
a special case, and there is no other like it. Tet
it be distinetly understood that Mr. Smith
—and I have no desire to say anything haish
or unpleasant about him—when he was District
Hngineer mspecting the works being constructed,
was supervising the work done by the contrac-
tors, and he condemned some of the work while
it was being carried out; and when the work
was finally completed by them, by that tine
Mr. Swith became Acting Chief Xngineer, and,
in fact, final judge to decide npon work which
he had already condemned. That is the reason,
and the only reason, that this is a special case,
and that no other can possibly come up nnder
the same circrunstances, Mr. Smith was District
Engineer while the works were heing constructed ;
he condemned the works ; and then it was pro-
posed that he should hecome the final judge in
the matter. It is well known to everybody that
whenever Mr., Smith has had anything to do
with contractors he has never left them until he
has landed them in the Supreme Court, and,
somehow, the country has always had to pay for
it. T will refer to the first firmn that ever buile
a railway in Queensland—DPeto, Brassey, and
Company—and in their case Mr. Smith was the
means of involving the Government in a lawsuit,

Yes s

They had alrecady reduced it
WORKS: Isay they

Will

Wil you
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The How. St T. McILWRAITH : No.

The MINTSTER FOR WORKS : Then the
hon. member must know better than I do.

The Hox. St T. McILWRATITH : It was the
arbitrator; and every point was given in Mr.
Smith’s favour.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: 1 have no
desive to say anything likely to do Mr. Smith
any harm, but unfortunately he has got a temper
sueh that it is utterly impossible for any man
to have ’1,11Vthm'r to do with him without getting
into trouble, and he eventually Tands him in tho
Supreme Court.  The contractors who carvied
out the extension of the wailway from Gowrie
Junction to Warwick were landed in the Suprenie
Court by Mr. Smith.

The Hox. Sik T. McTLWRATITH : No.

The MINISTER FOR WORKS: What ix
the hon. gentleman sitting there for, suying

“No”?

The Hox. Sik T. McILWRAITH : I say
N0

The MINTSTER ¥FOR WORKS: But I

say ** Yes.” The infirmity of Mr. Smith’s temper
has been the meuns of involving the (Government
in lawsuit after lawsuit, and in thisy case the
contractors had to go to the Supreme Court, and
unfortunately there was this stringent clause in
the contract, that the Chief Lngmeu s decision
should befinal. Youcan understand, Mr. Spealer,
that Mr. Swith being District inygineer while the
works were being constructed, and having con-
demmned those works, 1t was a natural conclusion
to come to, that he should not be the judge
and decide upon the very work which he had
condemned. That is all T have to say on the
subject.  The lhon. member has gone in
for alot of legal quibbles and straw-splitting.
1 do not know how many times he repeated the
tubenent that 1 gave Mr. Wade instructions to
ate this matter and decide it on its
, and I do not care if he repeats it twenty
tiles move. I hope T shall never do anything
worse than that.

Mr. ANNEAR said: After the able speech
delivered by the Premier, in defending the case
with which T have been connected, it would be
presumption on my part to attempt to add any-
thing to what the hon. gentleman has said.
Sowe time back a nunber of papers were laid on
the table of the House, and several of those
papers have been quoted by the leader of the
Opposition. It mizht he supposed that he read
from Mr. Wade’s report only, but, from the
remarks he made, I knew that he was quoting
from a report which was laid on the table of the
House, on the wotion of the member forr Port
Curtis. The Minister for Works has dealt very
kindly indeed with Mr, Smith, I shall not deal
so kindly with him ;3 T shall deal with hin in the
sane spirit that he attempted to deal with me.
1f the statements contained in his letter printed
in the return ezlled for by the member for Port
Curtis concerning nie, are true, I would not have
the courage to stand in this House, or even to
stand in any town in the colony. My partuer,
Mr. Thorn, and myself are there charged with
having heen parties to the driving of short piles
for a budnc ou the Mlarvborouy T oand Gympie
Railway.,  Now, sir, to wse u railway tern,
the piles referred to were “hishoped”—that is,
they were driven first and marked afterwards.
Jut how was this done? The sub-contractor
whom we had in onr emnploy got the Inspector to
go on the spree.  They arranged it together, and
meither Mr. Thovn nor T knew An‘:thmg alout it.
To prove that we knew nothing about the matter,
1 may poiut out that the piles were paid for by
the Grovermment 1u accordance with those marks,
awl we also padd the sub-contractor in accurdance
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with those marks, and the receipts we obtained
were placed before the Minister and the Chicf
Ingineer.  When it was first rumoured that the
piles were short, Mr. Jolm Thorn, mny pavtner,
proceeded to investigate the matter, and never
rested night or day until he sifted it to the
bottom. There wasa man working there named
MacGregor, and Dr, Thorn got hold of him and
took him to the Chief ¥nygineer, and thus proved
\\ ]mt hivl agttmlly been done. By that transaction
Thorn and T lost £3,000. Some time ago

the member for (7\’11111}6 ‘L\l\ul fnr an inguiry
into the conduct of A, John Drvsd o was
embloyed on a \\h‘nf at Mary The
leader of the Opposition made a wistake in sup-
posing that Drysdale had anything to do with
the bridge about which I spoke just now. The
charge made agaiust Drysdale was that he did
not kuow gum from fronfark when the bark was
on the sLm]\, and that was proved to be corvect.
’nt what was the result?  Why, Drysdale, who
ras o great friend of the late Ministry, and also a

fumduf A Smith, was sentup to Burmm Bridge
at a salary of 50 per cent. in advance of what
he was then gcttmg ; he was sent there because
he was proved o be totally incompetent.  After
that inquiry, on the 10th of March, 1882, Mr.
Swith and Mre scdale met together and con-
cocted three letters which may be found in the

return moved for by the member for Port
Curtis, charging me with doing certain things
that were done fifteen months hefore those 1e ttux

were written.  The leader of the Opposition
said that my partner and I gave a receipt for
payment for No. 1 section of the Ma wryborough
and Grympie Railway.  We did nothing of the
kind.  Our solicitor, Mr. A. J. Thynne, wrote
a letter demanding £10,000 for that section,
and I took thut letter to the Commissioner
for Railways.  After delivering the lettor,
Mr. Thorn and T repaired to the office of
the Chief KEngineer and accepted a sum of

money, and signed a paper under protest,
The bill for the £10,000 was in the hands

of the Commissioner before wo signed that docu-
ment. No final certificate was ever given for
No. 1 section.  The hon. gentleman referred to a
letter written by My, Stanley. But I would
remind him that previous to the date of that com-
munication the question was submitted to Mr.
Smith, who made his calealations during the
time Mr. Stanley was on a visit to England.
Now I will refer to the Antigna Bridee, and
show liow engineers can chmwe their opinions,
In that hnd% there were three cylinder piers.
The first was put down in accordancs: with the
plan and  specification, and completed ; the
muddle one was put down to the contract dq)th ;
and the pier nearest Marybovough was also put
down to the contract depth. The diver had
inspected thew, and we weve preparing to put
in the concrete, when we received an intimation
that the piers were to he put down deeper, one
of them as much as fifteen feet lower. I adinit
that we havi heen paid the cost of the Jabour
employed in doing that work, but that did not
recoup s any of the loss we sustained. The
bridge is sixteen miles from Maryborouzh, and
the length of the line is sixty-onemiles from Mary-
borough.  We expected to be able to carry all our
IJTI\MLY material, the provi<ions for our horses,
and everything dw ou the line. but the altera-
tions in that bnd% me\entul us doing that for
several wonthz  We were also obliged to putup a
temporary hridgeat that place, and we have not ve-
ceiveda shilling for that outl: The hon, member
for Mulgrave farther compiained that Mr. Wade
Wi nob JCL(”MI)(HHL»I OT1 L}S A up tu() lllltﬁ ]lV &Q
Government oficer.  Mr. Depree was a Govern-
ment ()fncw, and was up there nearly the whole
of the tine the line was in conrse of construction s
and he accompanied DMr. Wade. 1can nform
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the hon. gentleman that when Mr. Wade came
to Maryborough he had very little to say to the
contractors ; he kept clear of them, but he was
accompanied hy Mr. Depree and M. Metzhie,
Resident Kugineer at Maryborough, I can also
tell himy that Mr. Smith was more than a quarter
of an hour with M T:L(le. I called on Mr.
Wade in Brishane, and had to wait half-an-hour
hefore I could see him, ss he was engaged with
My, Smith ; and I think the result of That inber-
view was that Mr. Wade formed the same
opinion abouf, him as is entertained by a great
nany other people fu the colony. The leader
of the Opposition alto said we should not
be pald for the maintenance of the line.
The second scotion we maintained for nine
months after it was open for traffic.  All
we asked for was $o be paid for the three addi-
tional months,  The line was earning money for
the country; it was opened, and no accident
ever oceurred, or has ooccurred since, and no
defect bias been found in its construction from
the day it was first opened up to the present
time.  The hon. gentleman has also spoken
about the ballast on No. 1 section; Dbut I
want to show that Mr. Smith came to Mary-
borough with the full determination to put
my partner and myself in the Insolvent
Court.  He has not been able to do that yet, nor
will he do so. He told two respectable men in
Maryborough—and I took him before the Chief
Tngineer to repesst it—that he wonld ““straighten
those f:1lows up, " but he said that mnmchsmum rer
langusge than I now use. He did all he could
to straighten us up, and, as an instance, I may
refer to certificate No. 27, in which 32,000 yards
of ballast is mentioned. My, Swmith, without
a re-measurement, reduced that to 26,000 yards,
and without any explauation whatever. At that
time Mr, Smith was suprewne, and he knew that he
had the hon. gentleman opposite at his back. Mr.
Stanley darved notintirfere, underpenalty of ~ha,1»
ing the same fate as 3Mr. Stuith himself, who, in all
h]n transactions, referred to his hon. fnend, Sir
Thomas Mellwraith, and boasted that he wonld
be supported and lield up by that hon. gentle-
man. There are many respectable residents of
Maryborough who can bear out what 1 say;
and,” Mr. Speaker, the Czar of Russia is
nothing when compared with that autocrat
when be was superyvising the Maryborough line.
In referring to M. Smith—1 eall him ¢ Mr.”
on this oceasion, although I would not do so
outside—1I mean to be very careful in what I say,
because it is all absolutely true. On one ocea-
sion that g*entlenmn either went to the bavk
which did our business, or he wrote to the
manager, and represented that when No. 2
section was completed we would be entitled
to receive a certain sum of money. The
bank dishonoured our cheques and prowmissory
notes until T came 4o Brisbane. I was ques-
tiomed by the manager, and he belicved my
statement  against  that of Mr. Smith; and
within six nonths of that time T paid into the
bhank £9,0600 move than N Samith told the
manager we were entitled to receive.  That
would be a nice gentleman to ve for an arbi-
grator.  There ix a mzn to do justice to a
claini—a man who would attempt to ruin my
partner and myself by making a false statement
to the bauk ! T have been in the colony for
twenty-two years, amnl have known Mr, Smith
ever since 1 have been here; and that man has
caused the Govermnent to lose between two and
three hundred thouwsand pounds, T have worked
under that gentlenan when the line was being
constructed between Ipswich and Toowoomba,
and I have known his career since he has been
in the colony ; and he has landed many men in
the Supreme Court 3 but he has not got e there
yvet. He is dead as far as his services to thi-
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colony are concerned, but T live ; and T am sure
T shall outlive a man who weuld dare to do
the injury he attempted to do to me. He
has referred in a very kindly way to wme
in these papers, and, perhaps, 1 may en-
lighten hon. members as to what took place
at Malmesbury some time ago. It appears that
Mr. Smith rémoved the pegs of a man named
Samuel Hulse, who was afterwards a contractor
at the ,Enoggem waterworks.  Hulse publicly
horsewhipped him in the presence of Mr.
Higinbotham, the Engincer-in-Chief, and was

fined £5 at the ]mhce court next morning
for assaulting him. That, at all events, is
not much to Mr. Smith’s credit. A great

deal has been made out of this case, but I
faney I see in these papers the swme hand as
that of the hon. gentleman who has kept this
matter so prominently before the public in a
daily paper, but I am glad to see the (Government
are above being led Mvaybv whatappears in that
journal, Inr oference tothe Malyhol oughelection
Iwish tosay this—that, as far as I was Loucuned
the Government had nuthmn whatever to do with
it, It has been said that I received the support
of the Government, bu neither the (Government
nor anyone else \ummrtud me. I came before the
Maryborough electors with my own tale to teil, I
told it ; and the result 1 is, that T aw now in this
House. I am sorry that I should indulge in the
language T have used to-night towards this man
Slmth S but the time may come when he may again
bein the Public Service ; if he does he will have
the benefit of the truths T have told of him,

Question put and passed, and the House put
into Committee of Supply.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY (Hon. S.W.
Griffith) moved that the sun of £1,940 be
granted for the service of His ]‘,x”elh,ncy the
Governor. The only change in this vote was
an item of £330 to pmvxde accommodation for
the Birthday Ball, A sum of about that amount
had been spent for a great many years, but
instead of its being put down on ‘the Esti-
mates it had been paid out of the contin-
gency fund of the Works Department. It
seemed much more satisfactory to place the
amount on the Eutil[lrbtbs, 80 that hon, mem-
bers might know what they were voting, At
the [)lb‘bult time, with the lmwdy increased
population of the city and the colony generally,
there was no accommodation at Covernment
House for the Governor to perform the duties
expested of him, and in consequence additional
accommodation had had to be provided. This
year a more suitable building had been found
m which to hold the May Ball.

Question put and passed.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY moved that
£1,039 be granted for salaries and contingencies
for the Fxecutive Council. The only increase
in salary was for the beuetmy to the Prime
Minister, which was for the whole year instead
of eight nmnths, as explained in a foot-note

Question put and passed.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY moved that
£3,360 be granted for salaries and contingencies
for the Leqislati\e Council. The only change
was an increase to the messenger from £100 to
£120, making the salary to cor rmpoud with that
of the messenger of the Legislative Assembly.

Mr. BLACK said he noticed that in everyone
of the votes there was a certain amount for con-
tingencies. In one item that had been passed
there was a sum of £330 which was formerly
included in the contingencies in the Public
Works Department ; but notwithstanding that
that sum had been taken from the contingencies
of that departmeut, he noticad that there was
etill an increase of £500, Hethought that was a
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matter which the Committee should take into
consideration as the votes passed through.
Large atnounts were put uuder the head of “Con-
tingencies,” over which the House nad no control
when they had been voted. In the vote for the
Seeretary for Public Works, the amount for
contingencies last year was £ 0, and now it
was increased to £3,000, notwithstanding that
£350 had been taken away.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that
his colleagne would explain that when the Com-
niittee came to it. It should be remembered
that a large number of the Government baild-
ings were of wood, and, owing to the white ants
and other causes, they required a large expendi-
ture,

Question put and passed.

The COLONTAL SECRETARY moved that
£3,545 be granted for salaries and contingencies
for the Legislative Assembly. The amount was
the same as last year.

The Hox. 81 T. McILWRAITH said that,
in the Estimates framed by the Jast (overnment,
the Clerk of the Assembly was put down for an
increase of £100. During the discussion on the
Estimates in his (Sir T\ Mellwraith’s) absence in
January last, the matter was referred to; and
he understood, from the reply then given by the
Pl(miel, that the Government would cousider
the Increase favourably. He thought that if
there’was an officer in the service deserving of an
increase it was the Clerk of the Assembly. The
only reason he had heard against that officer
18(,(‘1\ m“ thb IL(/()(’Illtl()ll (hle LO hln’l on account
of the lolw tinte he had acted since any increasc
was given huu, was that the salary of the Clerk
of the Upper House wonld also have to be in-
creased.  Even if that were so, it would not be a
good argument. If they did not want to increase
one man’s salary, that was no reason why a
deserving officer should not receive the recogni-
tion due to him. Put he did not think it fol-
lowed that the same salary should be paid to the
Clerk of the Council as to the Clerk of the

ssentbly.  The amount of work done by the
latter was infinitely greater than that done by
the former. The Committee had passed the
salary of the Clerk of the Council, and, re-
membering that he had received promotion
from the position of Clerk Assistant, he thought
they should acknowledge that the Clerk of
the Assembly should get a larger sum. They
knew perfectly well that the Clerk of the
Assembly might have accepted the position of
Clerk of the Cmmul but he did not do so, and
he thought the Clommittee should remenber the
fact and give him an increased salary now,

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said the
matter had been wnder consideration, but it was
not thought desirable to increas= the salary at
the present thue. Tt should be borne in mind
that, in addition to the salary, the Clerk had
quarters and light, which were estimated in
the schedule at £150 a year. He very much
doubted whether simihu' accomniodation could
be got for £200 a year. Then of course the
Clerk got £200 as bu(wtarv to the Board of
\\'ater\\ml\s, g0 that the actual emoluments
he received conld not be less than £1,000 a year.
The Govermnent were bound to take those things
into consideration.

The Hox. Sir T McILWRATTH said that
all those things were taken into consideration
before. He Jidnot think the salary Mr. Bernays
received from the Board of Waterworks should
be taken into consideration by the Committee.
1t was not paid by the(}m ermment in any shape or
form it was paid by the citizens of Brishane, Mr,
Jernays did his work efficiently in the House,
and he had always done it just as efficiently for
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the Board of Waterworks. Then, again, the
fact that he veceived £600 from the Government
and €200 from the bowrd was a very different
thing from receiving £300 from the Govermuent.
They could not take into consideration a salary
of £500 when he retived from the Public Service,
because his salary was only £600. ‘There was no
officer in the GGovernment service who was more
deserving of consideration.  Kvery member of
the House must acknowledge that, There was
not a mewber of the House who had not been
indebted to him. He had been most unspaving
in the work he had done for them, £600 a year
was not o high salary for a gentleman of his
attaimnents, and especially considering the very
long time that he had etficiently occupied the
position he was in,
The COLONIAL SECRETARY said they
need not say anything on the score of Mr.
S e That was taken for granted.
They were all awhre of his efficiency, and of the
arduous duties of tha office he performed. He did
not think it was necessary to vefer to that matter.
The COLONTAL TREASURER said he
would add his testimony to the remarks made
by the hon. mewber for Alulgrave in
wd to the efficiency of Mr. Bernays, and
v the value of the =erv he rendered to
v hon. member of the House, They all
Iuew that fron experience.  He would point out
to the Comuwittee that they had endeavowred to
keep down the increases as far as possible, and
yet the Government were charged hy the hon.
membor with introducing extravagant Estimates,
It was somcwhat exwaordinary conduct that
only half-an-howr ago the Estimates were des-
cribedt as highly extravagant, and before they
had ot over two pages of them they were
requested to make increases on what he consi-
deved were very fair salaries at the present thue.
He could (nite nnderstand representations heing
made to increase the salaries of subordinates who
were living on £150 or £200 a year. Those were
cases which were fairly entitled to consideration,
He did not think the circumstaness of the colony
justitied them in increasing salaries where thew
could not be said to be msufficiens. If the
circumstances of the colony were such as to

admit of their increasing the Estimates in giving
larger salaries generally, certainly the first

among them for consideration would be that of
the Clerk of that Howse whose abilities were
quite recognised ; but he must, on behalf of the
Treasury, enter his protest against any large
salaries being increased at the present time.

The Hox., Sr T, McILWRATITH said the
hon. member assumed what was not a fact. The
Grovernment had exercized nothing like economy
in the framing of the Estimates.  He had never
seen Tistimates put before the Committee where
there was a grester percentage of increase than
there was at the present time, and especially in
the salari = of the Civil servants,

The COLONTAL TREASURER :

The Hox. Sie T. McILWRATTH : The hon.

mewmber made a ve at inistake if he faneied,
beeause they had censured those large increases
which would come into their consideration on
another oceasion, that censure was to he a justi-
fication for him to go against any well-earned
increase they might proposs for some of the
Civil servants swho had been neglected.

My, GROOM sadd that, as the Spraker of the
House, he wished to hear his testimony to the
etficiency of Mr. Beruays, and he would also point
oub the fast that ib was time theopinion was dis-
sipated from the minds of hon. member. that
no inereases should be given to olfieers of the
Legislative Assembly, wiless inereases wers also
given to officers of the Legislative Couneil, 1t had

AV()
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prevailed for a very long time, and the sooner
that opinion was dissipated the better. He
knew that a former President of the Legislative
Council, the late Sir Maurice (YChunell, held the
opinion, that it was actually an evasion of the
privileges of the Legislative Council if the
Legislative Assembly increased the salaries of
their own officers and did not increase the
salaries of the officers of the Legislative Council
as well. He did not agree with that opinion
at all.  He had been looking over the Listimates
of the sister colonies to sce what practice was
adopted there, and he found that the Chief Clerk
of the Legislative Assembly of New South
Wales raceived a much higlier salary than the

Clerk of the Parliaments and Legislative Council,
It was the same in Victorin and New Zealand.

In all three colonies the higher salary was paid
to the Clerk of the Legislative Assembly, and
very justly so, because the amount of work he
had to do was greater, and it was not too much
to say it was well earned. The same remarks
applied to the other officers as well.  In the
Estimates of the Legislative Council the messenger
had an increase from £100 to £120, simply
putting him on a par with the messenger
of their own House,  Now, he would like to say
a word to the Colonial Treasurer about that
master. The chief messenger of the Legislative
A\ssembly, whose salary was £150, had to be
heve till very late howrs indeed, and of course he
had to kesp up an appearance connmensurate
with his position as chief wmessenger. The
schedule which was attached to the Estimates
was somewhat misleading. It was stated there
that he reeceived 2s. 6d. o day, presumably as
waiter in the refreshment room. The whole
amommt did not exceed £5 in the course of the
year; in fact, it would take a long session to
make it €3, He had taken the opportunity to
wiite to the Colonial Secretary’s Oflice before
the Istimates were prepared to suggest thuat
an honorarium of £25 could very easily be given
to that wessenger for extra services during the
session. o mewnbers would admit that otficer
had discharged his duties in a very satisfactory
manuner, and was worthy of a small emolument
of that kind. All the officers of the House per-
formned their duties in a very satisfactory manner,
There was a very cousiderabie amount of respon-
sibility attached to the chief messenger, who, he
thonght, was eutitled to that honorarium. The
Colonial Treasurer, however, wouldnot advance it.
He mwentioned the matter because he thought the
messenger was justly entitled to special recog-
nition.

The Hox. S1R T. McILWRAITH said it was
a great pity that people were not better paid in
proportion to the work they did. He did not
know a harder-worked man in that House than
their messenger, who could always get them a

svoyears hack, and could twn up for them

coples of Acts almost as well as the Premier
could do himself, At all events that othicer was
of great assi<tance to hon. members ; and if they
had a; Sergeant-at-arms who had £300 a year he
thought thev ot ught to bear in mind the very great
services ])uimm(:u by their messenger, who was
worth three thines any Scergeant-at-arms they ever
had.,  The messenger did the whole work, and
the Sergeant-ut-arins got the whole of the salary.
What did they wi ant with « Sergeant-at-arms ?
The present one was only an ornament, and if thev
paid for an ornament they ought to have him in
his chair.  The Sergczmt-at-m‘ms was just as
often knocking about as any hon. members were 5
he went in a very easy style up to the mblo sat
down, vead & book, took a drink of wa and
anvone would think he was connected with the
Ministry, instead of being the Sergeant-at-arms.
At all eveuts, they ought to remember the
essenger now,
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Mr. ALAND said he might assure them he was
much disappointed when he turned to the st
page of the Fstimates, when he receivesdl them
some few weeks back, and found that no in-
crease was proposed in the salarvy of their mes-
senger, because, if he mistook not, when he
mentioned the matter Iast January, when the
Estimates were under con ideration, it was almost
promised by the Government that they would
see that there was an increase in salary made
this year, Now the Govermment talked about
there Leing no increase on the Istimates. Ho
had logked at the two schedules, and found the
expenditure for 1883-4 was £1,738,000, snd this
year £1,971,000. There was over £200,000
difference somewhere, and he thought, as they
went throngh the Kstimates, that they should
find there was a good deal of this sort of thing—
that those who had large salaries, to them the
increase was given,

The COLONTAL SECRETARY : No.

Mr. ALAND : The Premier said “No.” He
sincerely hoped that would prove to be the cuse,
because he had made up his mind that he should
certainly oppose the advance of salavies to those
that were highly paid at the present time; buf
any small increase to men who were getting low
salaries he certainly should approveof. Men who
were getting over £500 a year now, he thought
must be coutemted with their sala This was
not the time when they could wfford to raise
salaries over £300 a year.

Mr. GROOM said he was suve it was the wish
of the Committee that their chief messengershould
receive a snall honorarinan, and he was swre it
would be a gratification to the Counnittee if the
Colonial Treasurer would say that he would
place on the next Supplementary Mstimates a
sum for that purpose.  He could corroborate to
their full extent the remarks which were made
by the hon. the leader of the Opposition. He
thought that officer deserved a higher salary, and
he believed that outssde the House he would et
more, and _he was most intelligent in supplying
hon. members with information they required.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said the
Government would tske the matter into con-
sideration. 'With regard to what had been said
about increased salaries, there were apparently
a large number of increases under the head of
police magistrates and clerks of petty sessions,
but those were in licu of feos taken away, and so
were ouly apparent increases, With that ex-
ception, there were very few increases indecd.

Mr. BLACK said the fact undoubtedly re-
mained that, whereas the anticiputed increase
of revenue for the year was only £182,000, the
estimated increase of expenditure was £233,600.
It was very probable, considering the severe
drought the country was passing through, that
the somewhat rosy estimate the Treasurer made
when delivering his Financial Statement would
not be realised, especially as the revenue from
the land was likely to fall off. Ile was very
glad to hear from the remarks of the hon.
member for Toowoomba, Mr, Aland, that they
were likely to have some assistance from that
side of the Committee in checking inordinate
increases,  With regard to special increases
of salaries which had been referred %o, he
thought the gentleman who was in receipt of
£600 & year, with a good comfortable house, and
wood, water, fire, and gas, was very well off.
Of course, he knew his value ; every year he had
had the honour of a =scat in the House he had
heard the zame reference to the worth of the
gentleman in question.  He eertainly endorscd
what had been said abont the messenger, and he
thought it would have Leen a very graceful act
on the part of the Government if they had
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recognised his uniform courte
by making him
vacancy oceurre:l,

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said that,
with reference to the large increase in the Fsti-
mates the hon. gentlenian had mentioned, of
course the hon, gentlenian would not forget that
of the additional exponditure £535,000 was for
increased interest onm the public debt, and
£25,000 for increase on the schedule—advances
to local bodies and other sums payable by law.
That account=d for £80,060 of the 11 AKOH,
The remaining increases were alinest entively in
in the Department of Raily

Mr. BLACK : There is £109,000 besides that.

The COLONIAL SECRETANRY : That will
all be cxplained when we get to it.

The Hox. St T. McILWRAITH said he
would point out to the hon. member that he
might have avoided the increase in the schedule
by declining to pay the large sum they had paid
to AMr, P. F. Macdonald.

The COLONIAL SECRIETARY said that a
still simpler way would have been to put down
only half the intersst on the public debt.

Mr. ALAND said that the Premier had made
a remark that the chief increases were in the
salaries of police magistrates and others who had
hitherto heen in the habit of receiving fees ; but
he noticed that there was no correspending in-
crease under the head of ““Miscellaneons Services”
in the esvimate of Ways and Means, e thought
that those fees were to come into the Treasury ;
and that being the case, the Ways and Means
should have heen increased by at least the amount
of increases given to the othcers in lieu of the
fees.

Mr. BLACK sald that the Premier had
directed his attention to the fact that a large
amount of the increase was due to the increase
in the interest on the public debt; Lut he had
taken that into accountin his caleulation. The
increase in the expenditure vequired for this year
was £233,000 exclusive of the public debt alto-
gether—simply the working expensss of the
colony.

v and real ability
Sergeant-at-Army when the

Question put and passed.

The COLONIAY, SECRETARY moved that
a sum of £8354 be granted for salaries and
contingencies for the Legislative Council and
Legislative Ascembly. He said the only change
in the item was in connection with the reporting
staff. Last year the staff comprized five short-
hand writers—one at £450, one at £400, one at
£350, two at £300, and four eodets at £300. The
cadets were now ¢l 1 as shorthand-writers,
and one of the shorthand-writers who had been
receiving £350 had being replacsd by one raceiv-
ing £300, making a totul veduction of £30. In
other respects the item was just the same as
last year.

Mr. NORTON said that during the last short
session a diseussion had taken pisee on a motion
by the hon. member for Burke, that the pay-
ment to the Lilivarvian for compiling the ecata-
logue of the Library should he inereased.
There was a general understanding at that
time that the honorarivm which had  been
made to the Librarian was really below
the amount he ought to have received, had full
considerntion been given to the value of the
work., The amount paid was hased on the re-
commendation of the Library Committee, and
was, lie thought, lower than would othorwise
have bern the case, becanse it was thought thag
there might be some difliculsy in getting a vote
for the higher amount ; but there was a general
expression in the House In favour of the sum
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being increased to £1,000. and he thought that
sowe members of the Government had led the
House to nnderstand that the additional amount
would be placed on the Estimates this sessi

The COLONTAL SECRETARY said he did
not think there had been. any general under-
standing on the matter.  The Government
undertook to give it further coneideration.  They
had given that further consideration to the sub-
ject, Cand considering that during the time the
Librarian was umxplhn“ the C’\t;ll()“ﬂ? he was
recriving full pav, and that a great p‘ut of the
work wuas done during the hours for which he
was heing paid, the Clovermment xaw no resson
for revising the conclusion their predecessors had
come to. e was (uite aware of, and was very
glad to testify to, the great value of the work. 1
anything, it was abnost too good for a com-
paratively small library. It was a wonderful
specimen of work as a catalogue ; hut in dealing
with the public funds they had to consider its
pecuniary value. No doubt a great deal of
time, care, and tronble had bgen bestowed on
the work, but the gentleman had heen paid his
full salary all the time, and he had lately veceived
an addition to his salary.

Mr. NORTON said his impression last sessjon
was that the Government intended to take
the matter into their favourable consideration.
Though the Librarian had been receiving full
sulary, he had to work very late at night, and
he had spent a great deal of extra time on the
catalogue. Some time ago that gentleman was
very much under-estimated ; but the hon, mem-
bers who had under-estimated him had since
then expressed their regret and testified to his
ability.

Mr. GROOM said he could endorse what the
hon. member for Port Curtissaid.  He certainly
thought that the Colonial Treasurer made a
promise.

The COLONIAL TREASURER :

would consider the matter.

Mr. GROOM said he considered the cata-
logue as good an advertisement as Queensland
had ever had. It had been applied for by
institutions in all parts of the civilised world;
and if they were to accede to all the appli-
cations made by learned men, the work would
be out of publication in a very short time,
as only 80 volumes were left out of the 400
published. He believed that in the course of
years, when the work was reprinted, it would be
found to be one of the most useful publications
connected with any library in the world. The
evidence given by men of intellect and ability
showed the great value of the work, and he con-
sidered the £400 extra asked for wonld be a bare
recompense for the imimense labour bestowed on
it for years,

Mr. MIDGLEY said it was a matter of grati-
fication to him that the hon. member who had
just spoken was made Speaker, and not Colonial
Treasurver, for of all the men who wished to
spend the public money, he beat the lot, If
the Government would entertain the idea—a sort
of radieal ides—of throwing the Lilrary open to
the public during the recess, and giving the
officials something to do, there might be some-
thing in the claim put forward; but he really
thought it was a demand which ought not to be
entertained, considering the handsome manner
in which the work had been recognised. The
Librarian was as well paid as any official employesd
by Porlinment, and he should oppose the motion
to the utmost.

Mr. PALMER said that some time ago he
brought forward a motion for a gratuity to the
Librarian, and he withdrew it on the under-
standing that the Government would take the

T said I
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matter into their favourable consideration ; but
it seemed that he had reckoned without his ho&t
A little later he raised the ques in, and
on that occasion the Colonial Tre
“Ile fully believed that everything that had been
said in praise of the catalogue was justitied : but the
Government really had not had time to consider the
Tuntlor, on aecount of the se n coming on so early in
the year. He could hurdly mike any prouise at present,
hut the expression of opinion that hiad been given would
not he lost upon the Government, and before the IHouse
met again they would have arrived at sowme conclusion
on ithe subject.”
He (Mr. Palmner) understood from the Premier
also that he would take it into his favour-
able sousideration, especially after the expres-
sion of opinion on the part of the Conunittee.
Iivery month added to the recognised value of
the work. The Librarian had been made a mem-
ber of the Lilwarian’s Association of the United
Kingdom, an honour reserved for only men of
great literary talents. The catalocue itself was
a most valmable work of reference. Hon.
members had only to reler to any subject, to
find the names of all the works in the Library
counected with that subject, and they were
thus able to save a great deal of time. He
hoped the Government would show that the
work coromanded in the country in which it
originated the same appreciation it had veceived
in other parts of the world. He conld only say
that the Librarian was fully entitled to the extra
gmtmtv considering the unremitting labour he
had hestowed on the work when he was receiving
a lower salary than he received at present.

Mr. ALAND said there was another matter
in connection with the vote which he wished to
mention, and he trusted he should have the
support of the leader of the Oppesition. He
referved to the fact that the Library was kept
open all the day on Sunday during the session.

Mr. NORTON : That has been altered.

Mr. ALAND : It must have been altered very
recently.

Mr. GROOM: Since last Sunday.

Mr. ALAND said that at any rate up to last
Sunday the Library had been kept open all day,
and up to 10 o’clock at night. That seemed
altogether unnecessary. Not only was the
Library messenger kept there, but the hall-porter
had to be at his post the whole of Sunday. No
doubt when those officials were engaged they
Lknew that that was part of their duty, so that
possibly it might not be a matter of unfairness
to them. TFrowm inguiries he had made he found
that very few members—seldom more than one
or two—attended on a Sunday for the purpose
of making use of the Library, and some Sundays
passed without any mewmbers whatever putting
in an appearance. Such being the case, it was
for the Comittee to determine whether it
would not be better to close the Library on Sun-
days, and so allow the messenger and hall-porter
to have the day to thewselves,

Mr. GROOM said the question was under the
notice of the Library Cominittee a month sgo,
and it was then decided not to close the Libr (Lry
on Sunday until they had an expression of
opinion from hon. members on the subject
when the estimate was under discussion. He
(Mr. Groom) instructed the Library messenger
to keep an account for a month of the
number of members who availed themselves
of the Library on Sundays, and he read
the return at a meeting of the Library Com-
mittee held yesterdsy. The Library was open
from 8 o’clock a.m. till 10 p.m,  On Sunday,
the 9th October, not a solitary member came
near the building ; on the following Sunday two
came, and one remained till half-past 12 o’clock ;
on the next Sunday there were two, and one
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went away at 10 o’clock, and the other at half-
past 11; last Sunday there were only two, anid

one remained till 11 o’clock, and the other til
half-past 12, On lewrning those facts, the
Library Committee decided that the Library
should be eclosed at 1 oclock during the re-
mainder of the session. If the Comnmittee were
of opinion that the Library should be closed the
whole day on Sunday, the Library Committee
would be only too gl fad to wive effect to their
instructions.

Mr. MIDGLEY suggested that the Libre
should be kept open till 11 o'cloek on wet
nighty when Parlinuens was in session. When
the House happened to adjouwrn at 10 o’clock,
there were some half-dozen members who conld
not get home for an hour or so, and as the gas
vas turned out in the Litvary tmmediately atver
the House rose, they weve left to wander about
the stroets.  He would contuend his suggestion
to the attention of the Library Committee,

Me, JORDAN =aid he was glad 49 hear that
hon, members did not eotwe to vead in the Librepe
ou Sundays; not that there would b anyth
vary wrong in doing so, but it Jed him to AH/[)L
thut they went to chuwrehi—like the leader of the
Opposition. He hoped they wonld continue to
do so, and D the weantime he shonkd suppore
the action taken by the Library Culnmitt e,

Me. T CAMPBELL said that, with wdd to
the Libravian, he recollected that Imt seEslon a
promise was given by the GGovernment thab his
claings would be Ctmxlder ' duaring the recess
and the hinpression left on his wmind was that the
Colonial Treasurer led hon. members to balieve

1y

that an  extra honovartune of £400 wounld be
granted.

My, NORTON : e was only jokiug.

My T CAMPBELT, #aid he did not think
the Colonial Treaswer would go back frow bis
prou It wis needless for him to say any-
thing in vraise of the catalogne, for all hon.

wenrbers were agreed as to its excellence, aud
those who had oceasion to enwult it found it a

most valiable guide to the eontents of the
Library. It was the best catalogne he had seen,
and he had seen a good many. It had
Deen said that the Libravian w paid  his
salary  while compiling the catulogue.  So
he was, but hy far the larger (sut of the

Talding that
tmight grace
of

work was done ont of office-hon
into consideration, the Governme
fully accede to giving an increase
£400, especially afrer the distinet ]Jmnu
by the Colonial Treasurer. As to keepiug the
Library open on Sundavs, he thought that if
even one member wished $o consult it ont that
day—though he might be better emploved in
gomg to churcli—he had a vight to doso.  Con-
sideriug that there was only oue small Doy
requived to attend to the Library on Sunday no
great hardship was done ; and although he would
like to s members observing Sandays i a
better way, they ought to be abls to consult their
own inclinations in the mather.

The COLONIAL SECRETARY said he was
not aware of the arrangements about the Library,
but he thowsht it most waressonable that it
should be kept open all day on Sunday, and he
was glad to hear that the Library Connuittee
had deterniined toclose it at 1 o'clock, He saw
no veason why the Libravy shoudd be open at all
on Sundays when the House was not in wsuon,
and he trusted the Committee would also arrive
at that conclusion.

The Hox. Ste T. McILWRATTH said he was
a mewber of the Library Connnittes when it was
determined to open the Library on Suudavs, the
reason being that it would convenience country
members, large numbers of whom used it at that
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time.  As to the present usage, the evidence
given by the Speaker was conclusive, and if the

Librar v was not used it should not be kept open.
In his time the ordinary Library messengers weve
not employed on Sundays, but an extra man was
enae wed for the purpose "and paid. No extra
work was thrown upon the regular servants of
the Library, although they were made responsible
for the condition of the Library. But after the
statistics of the Speaker, showing that not half-
a-dosen members a4 month attended, the matter
was hardly worth diseussing.

Mr. NORTON said he remembered when the
question of opening the Library on Sundays was
fiest brought forward two or three years ago, and
he kuew that at that thne a good many members
wished to make use of the lemx’y oun that day.
However, when asked if he would reconrmend
that it be opened, he positively declined, because

he held that any niember who wanted a
book to read on Sunday could take it out on
Saturday. it d/!‘l)\,d/led however, that atten-

dance on Sunds
out, but of cours

had almost  entirely died
according to the rule, the
Tiabrary mnst be kept open.  With reference to
the ho who took charge of it on
Sundays, he understood that e got additional
pay for <l<;lng 80,

Mr. GROOM (as S;Jeﬂl\m) said the hall porter
was also obligad to be in attendance on Bundays,

sl he got nothing except his regular - ‘LLLI).
He thought hon. mewmbers would see the

hardship of his ease when he stated that that
officer had to e at his post from 8 o’clock in
the morning until 10 o’clock at night every day,
from Monday morning until Sunday night, so
that really hv got no time for rest or anything
else. It wis, no douby, quite true that the boy
in .LLtenr‘Lum- in the Libeary on Sundays did
receive a small emolhument for his serviess, but
he (Mr. Groom) was in a position to say thd‘t he
would much rather have a day’s vest than the
small sum he received.

The Hox, Sin T. McILWRAITH said hon.
mewmbers appearved to forget that the hall porter
was appointed to keep cows out of the hall, and
cows would stray about the streets on Sunday as
well ayany other day., He wished to get through
the itewn, but would like to get some information
as to when they were likely to have the Chamber
lighted with the clectriclight. It was more than
eichteen nonths since the ovder was given, and
they were still there stewing at that time of
night over a miserable iten of £300 for gas.

The COLONIATL SECRETARY said the
building for the purpose was going on as rapidly
as porsible, and there would be no delay as far as
that was concerned ; but there was no chance of
having the building lighted by electric light this

sossion, It would, however, be ready by next
session,  Ha might say that he had never heen

able to discover any authority for supplying the
electric licht.  The only domiment that he had
diseovered conmected with the matter was the
account that had to he paid.

Mr. BAILEY said they were dealing with the
Library question in rather a seltizh ~pult They
Lad a splendid library; there was hardly a
library like it in New South Wales, and yet
they kept it entirely to themselves, and would
not allow the public to have access to it in any
shape or form.

The Hox. iz T. McILWRAITH : A very

goad job too.

Mr. BAILEY : He did not thinkso. There
were wany students in the city of Brishane—
many wen of studious habits and literary tastes

—who would be very glad indeed to have the
privilege of access to the 1. ibrary on Sundays.
What right had the members of that House
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to keep the books in the Library entirely to
themselves? “They did not pay for them; they
were paid for by the people of the colony 5 and
why should the Library be shut up on Sundays,
ingtead of being open to any man in the city
who wished to consult the works of refei-
ence that he could obtain there, and could
obtain in no other place? He would be
strongly in favour of opening the Library
to the public all day on Sunday., Let them
put on as many restrictions as they pleased for
the safoty of the Library, but why not enable
every man of studious habits to have access to
it when it was the property of the people
and was paid for by them ? It was all very well
to call it “our library,” but it was not their
library. It belonged to the people of the colony,
who ought to have the use of it. They could
not cunvununtly allow the public aceess to it on
week days, especially when the House was sit-
ting ; but he thought it cught to be open to the
public on Sundays, under certain restrictions.
He believed that it would be a great educational
boon to many people in the ut) He rather
regretted the spirit of sabbatarianism that was
springing up amonygst hon. members. He him-
self must plead guilty to being a Sunday
frequenter of the Library, and he could assure
hon. members that he had done more work
there on  Sunday than on any week day.
He should like other people to have the same
privilege that he had enjoyed since he had been
a member of the House, and regretted very much
that they were deprived of it.

Mr. GRIMES =aid it was evident, from the
remarks of the hon. the Speaker, that no good
purpose was served by opening the Library on
Sundays; and he hoped that those who had
charge of it would take the expression of opinion
given by hon. members, and close it altogether
on Sundays so as to allow the officers to have o
day’s rest in the week.

Mr. DONALDSON said he was one of those
who frequented the Library on Sundays, but he
should be wery sorry to do so if by so doing he
deprived the officers of a day’s rest in the week.
He thought it was only fair that, having late
hours every night, they should have a holiday
on Sunday ; and he hoped the Committee would
close the Library on that day.

Mr. T. CAMPBELL said he was not going to
allow the vote to pass without asking an expres-
sion of opinion from the Comnnittee as to the
catalogue compiled by the Librarian. During
the last short session he understood the hon. the
Colonial Treasurer to yive a distinet promive that
that officer should be granted a further sum, and
the remarks of the hon. member for Burke
clearly showed that he did give a promise to that
effect.  He therefore thuugnt the hon. gentleman
could hardly wriggle out of the matter so easily
as he thought he could.

The COLONIAL TREASTURER said he did
cive a promise lust session that he would bring
the matter referred to before the (rovernuent.
He had done so, and after consideration they
deemed it unnecessary that any further payment
should be madde than had been granted alveady.

Ttem put and passed.

On the motion of the COLONIAL TREA-
SURER, the CHatryman left the chair, reported
progress, and obtained leave to sit again to-

DOTLOW,
ADJOURNMENT.

The PREMIER, in moving the adjournment
of the House, said the busiuess to be taken on
Tuesday, after the third reading of the Land
Bill, would be the Defence Bill in emnmittee.

The House 4([)0111119(1 at fen minutes past
11 o’clock:

Divisional Boards, Ete., Bill.
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